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Wednesday, August 24, 2016
--- On commencing at 9:26 a.m.

MS. HELT:  Good morning, everyone.  I would like to welcome you to today's technical conference.  This is a technical conference with respect to Ontario Energy Board file number EB-2016-0025.  It is an application for approval to amalgamate to form LDC Co. and for LDC Co. to purchase and amalgamate with Hydro One Brampton Networks Inc.

Enersource Hydro Mississauga Inc., Horizon Utilities Corporation, and PowerStream Inc., collectively the applicants, filed an application with the OEB on April 18th, 2016 under section 86 seeking approval to form LDC Co.

This technical conference was established by Procedural Order No. 2.  It is a transcribed technical conference.  We are also on air for those who may be listening in, and we have provided a dial-in number that was circulated yesterday.

The purpose of a technical conference is clearly set out in the Board's Rules of Practice and Procedure, Rule 25, and it is stipulated as, to allow parties to ask questions of a clarifying nature of the application and the interrogatories and interrogatory responses.  It is not an opportunity for cross-examination.  An opportunity for cross-examination is provided for at the oral hearing, which is scheduled for September.

There has been some confidential material that has been filed in this proceeding to date.  I would ask that if any parties who have signed the declaration and undertaking and received confidential material and have questions with respect to that confidential material inform the parties -- prior to asking any questions -- that you are seeking to pursue a line of questioning concerning confidential material, because it will be necessary for us to then go in camera and for all those present who have not signed a declaration and undertaking to leave the room.

In that regard, it would be most helpful if parties could try and frame their questions in a manner such that there is no need to go in camera.  However, if there is a need, we can certainly do so, and we will do so.

I would also like to inform parties -- I believe most of you are well aware of this, having attended before the Board previously -- that when you are either asking or answering questions to ensure that your microphone is on.  To do so you will notice on the console in front of you that there is a green button.  Please ensure that you press the green button and that the light is on.  That is the only way that we can ensure that everyone can hear what is being said and, most importantly, for our court reporter, who today is Teresa Forbes, is able to hear and properly transcribe the information being presented.  If your microphone is not on, Ms. Forbes may interrupt and inform you that your microphone is not on.

With that, I would like to ask for appearances at this time.
Appearances:


MR. CASS:  Good morning, Fred Cass and James Sidlofsky for the applicants.

MR. BRETT:  Good morning.  The light is not on here.  There we go.  Tom Brett for the Building Owners and Managers Association.

MR. SHEPHERD:  Jay Shepherd, School Energy Coalition.

MR. GARNER:  Mark Garner, consultant with VECC.

MR. STEPHENSON:  Hi, I'm Richard Stephenson.  I'm counsel for the Power Workers' Union.

MR. AIKEN:  Randy Aiken, consultant for Energy Probe.

MS. HELT:  Thank you, everyone.

At this time then, I have had an opportunity to speak with the intervenors just prior to this technical conference commencing.  And I understand that the order of questions will proceed as follows:  Mr. Shepherd will proceed first on behalf of the School Energy Coalition.  Mr. Shepherd did request, by e-mail previously, that he be allowed to proceed first, as he has another commitment at the end of the day.

Most of his questions will likely be with respect to panel 1.  However, if panel 2 is required as well, then I would ask that we switch from panel 1 immediately to panel 2 in order to accommodate Mr. Shepherd's questions, and then we will proceed back to panel 1 and complete panel 1 in the usual course.

After Mr. Shepherd, Mr. Aiken will be asking questions, to be followed then by, I believe, Board Staff, then Mr. Brett and then Mr. Garner, should he have any questions, and Mr. Stephenson if he has any questions.

So at this time I would like to turn it over to Mr. Sidlofsky or Mr. Cass to introduce your witness panel.

MR. CASS:  Thank you, Maureen.  Yes, we are ready to proceed.

As you are aware, the CVs of the witnesses have been filed, and their current positions and experience are described in the CVs, so I will just quickly introduce them for the record.

Seated furthest from me is Elena Yampolsky.  Next to her is John Glicksman.  Then Indy Butany-DeSouza, and finally John Basilio.

Again, the CVs have been filed, and I don't think that any further introduction is needed at this time.  Thank you.
MS. HELT:  Thank you, Mr. Cass.

Mr. Shepherd, whenever you are ready.
LDC CO. - PANEL 1

John Glicksman

John Basilio

Indy Butany-DeSouza

Elena Yampolsky

Questions by Mr. Shepherd:

MR. SHEPHERD:  Thank you, I think I know all of you.  Hi.  I want to start by getting on the record a request from AMPCO.  They sent you an additional question this morning.  Did you receive it?

MS. BUTANY-DESOUZA:  No, we have not.

MR. SHEPHERD:  I have a copy of the e-mail that was sent to all of the applicants at 9:01 this morning.  So what I am going to ask -- the reason I am raising it is so that I can get an undertaking on the record for you to answer it.  But since you haven't seen it, you can't undertake yet.

But I wonder if I could ask if somebody will go look for it so we can get the undertaking on the record at some point this morning.

MR. CASS:  Yes, we can do that.  Yeah, I think at 9:01 we were probably starting to mobilize towards this room, so, yes, we can look at it.

MR. SHEPHERD:  And not looking at your e-mails while you were walking?

[Laughter]

All right.  Then I have one preliminary question that -- before I start into my main set of questions.  What I am going to try to do is I am going to try to, as much as possible, refer to the non-confidential material for the numbers where I can.

I have tried to -- I have looked at the confidential model, and I have tried to see where in the evidence those numbers show up without being confidential.  I am trying to use those ones instead.  We will see whether I can go all the way there, but I will try.

But my first question is with respect to the pay-back for your transition costs.  So I wonder if you could look at B-Staff-31, the operational plan which is attached to it.  Page 77.  B-Staff-31.  Then you have your Titan operational plan attached to it, and I am on page 77.

MS. HELT:  It looks like the system is a little slow right there, coming up on the screen.

MS. BUTANY-DESOUZA:  We have it.

MR. SHEPHERD:  Okay.  So do you see these tables here?  These are your calculation of the costs and benefits of the merger, basically, right?

MR. BASILIO:  That's correct.

MR. SHEPHERD:  And I am going to talk a little more about whether there are changes to the numbers, but are these essentially still correct?  Or close enough?

MR. BASILIO:  Yes.

MR. SHEPHERD:  All right.  Am I right in reading, under total cash savings, that by sometime early in 2018 you have paid back all of your costs?

MR. BASILIO:  Yes.

MR. SHEPHERD:  Now, you've referred throughout the evidence to the $96 million of transition costs.  Do you recall that number?  96.3, I think it is.

MR. BASILIO:  97.3, I think, but close enough, yes.

MR. SHEPHERD:  But the actual maximum number that you are ever out of pocket, if I am -- if I understand this correctly, is somewhere around $30 million, right?  It is something in excess of 24.4, but not much because by the next year you are already positive.

MR. BASILIO:  So on a net savings basis, I think that -- I mean, if you are taking the savings less transition costs, then of course that -- at no time are we out $97 million.  We're out whatever we have incurred in the year less synergies realized.

So subject to check, I believe that is correct.

MR. SHEPHERD:  All right.  Now, the last thing about this is, this starts with savings in 2016.  Obviously you are not going to have a whole lot of savings in 2016, unless the approval is tomorrow.

So would we be right to just assume that we take this -- and when I say right, I mean close enough -- if we just take this an move all of the dates out one?

MR. BASILIO:  That's correct.  And I believe we responded to an interrogatory in that regard, that we should consider 2016 as year one post transaction, and then moving forward from there.

So this grid now, if we were to read it like that, it would be years one through ten rather than 2016 to 2025.

MR. SHEPHERD:  So then 2016 would actually be 2017?

MR. BASILIO:  Exactly.

MR. SHEPHERD:  All right.  Awesome.

Now then, the secondary or preliminary questions I want to ask is with respect to the business plan model that you have provided on Monday.

And I am not going to ask questions about the guts of the model, at least not right now.  But I want to ask some higher-level questions, and if any of these go into confidential territory, then jump up and down and flap your wings, as it were.

The first question about that is, should we be able to match up the numbers in those plan to the numbers in the application, generally speaking?  Are they the same set of numbers?

MR. BASILIO:  Sorry, the numbers in the model, the numbers in the plan?

MR. SHEPHERD:  No, no.  Sorry.  In the model.

MR. BASILIO:  So the model is the source for the statistics in the application evidence.

So the answer -- I mean, if that's the question, the answer is yes.

MR. SHEPHERD:  So they match up.  All right.

Now, the numbers given to your shareholders, the shareholders of the various merging companies, were earlier numbers, right?  They're not the numbers from the model?

MR. BASILIO:  Yes, in fact they are.  The numbers from the model, which was -- I mean, the model was the basis for the business case, which has been filed in evidence --


MR. SHEPHERD:  Yes.

MR. BASILIO:  -- provided to, basically provided as the basis for the decision.

So certainly the information that shareholders and boards would have seen would have been based off of the model that we had provided in response to the interrogatory.

MR. GLICKSMAN:  Just one clarification, that the PowerStream shareholders hired Navigant, who did their own model.

MR. SHEPHERD:  Oh, no, I understand.

MR. GLICKSMAN:  So what the PowerStream shareholders saw were not only the numbers, as John said, coming out of the model.  They also saw Navigant's assessment of those numbers, which were somewhat different.

MR. SHEPHERD:  Now, you actually ran this model one for each of the three merger partners, right?  The one you filed is the Horizon one?

MR. BASILIO:  No.  The model we filed is the model on behalf of all the parties.  It would have been the common model used by the parties as the basis for creating the common business case that we filed in evidence.

MR. SHEPHERD:  Well, the stuff I looked at, all of the detailed stuff was only for one utility.

MR. BASILIO:  And so in terms of how the model works, and I don't think -- there's nothing confidential about this, so you may have been looking at a pro forma tab for example, or a cash flow tab, or something like that.

So for stand-alone information, you have to select a scenario.

MR. SHEPHERD:  Oh, I see.

MR. BASILIO:  And so the model was filed set to scenario 4, which is Horizon, for stand-alone information and you would have had, essentially had to have changed that statutory.

There is a drop-down on one of the tabs that allows you to change it to PowerStream, or Enersource, or Hydro One Brampton.

MR. SHEPHERD:  That's very helpful.  Thank you.  You have no idea how hard I tried to find the other model, the other scenarios.  All right.

Then the last thing about the model that I want to ask -- and I asked this yesterday already, and I’m going to ask it again on the record:  Will you provide a non-live version of the output of the model, without the algorithms, without the formulae, on the public record so that we can use it in the oral hearing with whatever specific numbers are still confidential blacked out?

MR. BASILIO:  My trepidation is that having looked at the model, Mr. Shepherd, you know that it is very large, some tabs having thousands of lines of data.  And so if you could offer specifically what you might be after, I think that would be -- I think that would be our preference, in terms of printing it, because it is just -- it is almost unmanageable in terms of printing.  Perhaps you have --


MR. SHEPHERD:  No, I see.  I didn't try to print it, because I am not crazy, but it does appear clear that there is a lot of pages.



But will you undertake to provide a version of the output that is useable in the hearing?  I am happy to talk with you off-line about what should be included in it.

MR. BASILIO:  We would appreciate that, yes, and we would be willing to do that to try to perhaps have a more focussed and valuable printout to you.

MR. SHEPHERD:  Can we have an undertaking?

MS. HELT:  That will be undertaking JTC1.1.
UNDERTAKING NO. JTC1.1:  TO CLARIFY FORMAT OF THE MODEL FOR USE AT THE HEARING


MR. SHEPHERD:  Then the --


MS. BUTANY-DESOUZA:  Sorry, Mr. Shepherd.  Can I clarify then on the record that we can have a discussion with you as to what we're looking at live on the model, and then get to a point where you are satisfied with what we're going to produce as a static version?

MR. SHEPHERD:  Yes, yes.

MS. BUTANY-DESOUZA:  Okay, thank you.

MR. SHEPHERD:  I am just trying to simplify the oral hearing is all.

Then my final area of preliminary questions is -- there was a discussion about the impact of the decision of the Board in EB-2015-0003, the PowerStream decision, the rate case.

And my understanding is that the PowerStream decision reduced revenue requirement over the next ten years for PowerStream – sorry, I guess over the next five years, by $83 million.  Is that correct?

MR. GLICKSMAN:  So we responded to that under AMPCO 1 and we have said that, you know, our application had asked for 1092 and that the distribution revenue we have estimated as 1019.

MR. SHEPHERD:  So $83 million -- sorry, 73 million.

MR. GLICKSMAN:  73 million.

MR. SHEPHERD:  $73 million.  That is why you have the numbers instead of me.

Now, part of that decision was that, related to capital because obviously you had capital in subsequent years after 2017 that the Board has not approved because it put you on price cap, right?

Does that mean that the ICM forecast of $130 million in this proceeding is changed?

MR. GLICKSMAN:  So in the answer to AMPCO 1, we said that when we did the business case model we assumed a ten million per year reduction in the first three years.  Our engineering people are doing an assessment of the DSP that was consistent with our rates submission, and have not completed their assessment as to how capital would be spent over the period.

MR. SHEPHERD:  Will you undertake to update your forecast of $130 million of ICM claims?

MR. BASILIO:  If I might?  We don't intend to update the model or the evidence at all for the PowerStream decision.

The basis of that is, I think as John was alluding to, is that although -- although the difference between the PowerStream ask and its application and what it got is $73 million or thereabouts.

However, in the business case model, we assumed that PowerStream would not get everything that it asked for in its application.  You know, a conservative approach because that's typically what happens.

And so as John alluded, and I am going to look at him here for confirmation, but we reduced the capital requirement in the model relative to the application by $10 million per year.

MR. GLICKSMAN:  Hmm-hmm.  Or the three-year period.

MR. SHEPHERD:  Sorry, the revenue requirement?

MR. BASILIO:  No.  The capital requirement.

MR. GLICKSMAN:  By 10 million a year for the three-year period.

MR. BASILIO:  And the reduction in the application was?


MR. GLICKSMAN:  Well, it brought us down to 1053.

MR. BASILIO:  But the capital reduction was -- in the decision was 15 --


MR. GLICKSMAN:  15.8.

MR. BASILIO:  15.8 million?  So a $5.8 million difference relative to what is in the business model for capital.

MR. SHEPHERD:  Per year?

MR. BASILIO:  Per year.  For OM&A the business case model assumed that PowerStream would have $5 million less than what it applied for.

The PowerStream decision awarded a $5.6 million cut relative to the application.  So from a model perspective it is out about $600,000 per year, operating about $6 million a year capital.

As we explain in AMPCO 1, it is not material.  It's not significant to the model.  And therefore we don't propose to update the application evidence to go through the machinations, which would take a great deal of time to go through, reconcile, do quality review, you know, engage our advisors.

And so that would take a great deal of time to do.  So we don't propose to do that.  What we're suggesting is that really nothing has changed substantively, and so I think maybe that is to a slightly different question that you are asking, but we don't propose to update the model at this point for those --


MR. SHEPHERD:  I am not asking you to update the model.  You've made a forecast of your ICM claims over the next ten years.  That's going to change in a material way.  I would like to know what the new numbers are.

MR. BASILIO:  But effectively we would have to update the entire model to do that, because that's the way it works.

MR. SHEPHERD:  The ICM claims are an output from the model?

MR. BASILIO:  Yes.  So within --


MR. SHEPHERD:  That's the same -- the Deloitte model you're talking about?

MR. BASILIO:  Within the Deloitte model the revenue requirement is a combination of how we would typically -- and you will see a tab in the model that provides for that.  They're, you know, essentially rates which computes rate base and generates a revenue requirement.

There is also a tab that determines ICM, using the Board's methodology for determining ICM.  And so effectively to alter any sort of calculation in that model you would have to update the entire model to do that, so ICM is not separate from the rest in that regard.

MR. SHEPHERD:  All you have to do is change the inputs, right?

MR. BASILIO:  It is not quite that simple.

MR. SHEPHERD:  Okay.  Well, I looked at the model, and it didn't look that complicated.  It's a spreadsheet.

MR. BASILIO:  As somebody that has worked on this model for the past several months, it is more complicated than that.

MR. SHEPHERD:  Okay.  So I have asked you to undertake to update the ICM forecast.  Do I take that as a refusal?

MR. CASS:  Yes, Jay.

MR. SHEPHERD:  Thank you.  Now, I want to move to the -- I am going to start with the SEC IRs.  And I am basically just going to go through them from the front to back, so it may be a bit disjointed, but I think it is faster.

Starting with SEC 1.  I took the final sentence of SEC 1 to be a refusal.  But then I took the first sentence to be an answer to the question.  Am I understanding that correctly?  The province never asked you to do these transactions?

MR. BASILIO:  That's correct.

MR. SHEPHERD:  Okay, thank you.

Then SEC 2 says that you are not going to be on side on the monthly billing requirement.  When are Enersource and Horizon residential customers going to have monthly billing?

MR. BASILIO:  We can offer a "thereabouts", but the operations panel has the definitive answer.  I just can't recall very specifically what that time is.

MR. SHEPHERD:  This is a bigger-than-a-breadbox question.  It doesn't need to be the exact day.

MS. BUTANY-DESOUZA:  Okay.  Well, then I believe that it is 2018 for Enersource and likely early 2019 for Horizon.

MR. SHEPHERD:  And that is because when you're migrating your CIS systems --


MS. BUTANY-DESOUZA:  Yes.

MR. SHEPHERD:  -- you can't do both.  You can't do monthly billing at the same time as you are trying to put them together?

MS. BUTANY-DESOUZA:  So currently the plan is for Enersource to move on to the PowerStream CIS.  And at that time, when that migration is complete, Enersource will be on monthly billing as well.

Currently Hydro One Brampton is on monthly billing and PowerStream will be compliant by the end of the year.  So when Enersource migrates on to it, then they will be compliant, and the estimated time line -- subject to check from panel 2 -- is 2018.

Horizon isn't migrating until after Enersource, and so it is at that time that Horizon Utilities would be on monthly billing.

MR. SHEPHERD:  And you're migrating sequentially simply to reduce the possibility of problems?  Or is there some other reason related to Horizon why you have to wait?

MR. BASILIO:  It's sort of a logical sequencing.  PowerStream and Enersource are largely on the same platform.  Horizon would be coming on to a new platform.

MR. SHEPHERD:  Okay.  No, I was wondering whether -- like, you have an ERP system that's also different from theirs, right?

MS. BUTANY-DESOUZA:  Correct.

MR. BASILIO:  We haven't -- that's correct.

MR. SHEPHERD:  Okay.  All right.  My next question is on SEC 3, and there is a couple of refusals here which I won't pursue right now.  But what I would like to ask about is your question on the second page -- your answer on the second page that the benefits in the application are going to be the same whether you use the limited partnership structure or the corporate structure.

And I'm -- as a long-time tax lawyer I don't know how that is possible, so can you help me out and explain why they're the same?  The short explanation, not the really detailed one.

MR. BASILIO:  Well, as somebody that has a tax specialization as well, essentially you would just be moving the entire cost base down to do a partnership.  While that partnership is wholly owned, the taxes payable by the partner will be the same on the earnings allocation.

MR. SHEPHERD:  Because the partners are also corporations?

MR. BASILIO:  If all we're doing on day 1 is rolling the -- effectively the economics of the LDC, its rate base, its entire rate base and operation down into the partnership, and there is only one partner, effectively one partner -- I mean, you know, you need two partners to make a partnership, as you know, but we would -- and that is wholly owned by a corporate Mergeco group, so substantially no ownership interests have changed as a result of the drop-down, then the economics really haven't changed in terms of what the, you know, what the synergies are, what the --


MR. SHEPHERD:  So the corporate limited partner -- which owns 99.99 percent -- gets all of the income and all of the other attributes flowing through to them?

MR. BASILIO:  Exactly.

MR. SHEPHERD:  So it pays the same tax as if they --


MR. BASILIO:  Exactly.

MR. SHEPHERD:  -- ran the business themselves.

MR. BASILIO:  Exactly.

MR. SHEPHERD:  All right.  The reason I pursued it is because you are not going to put the solar in there, right?

MR. BASILIO:  Not into that partnership.  You might -- probably moving off-point here a little bit, but you will probably recall from a Horizon proceeding that Horizon has Solar Sunbelt general partnership, within which it has its solar assets.

Now, that as well -- and that partnership was created in contemplation of other investment interests which never materialized because they really weren't needed.  It is wholly owned by Horizon.

That will move into Mergeco, but it will not be part of that LDC partnership.  It would be something separate and apart.

MR. SHEPHERD:  All right.  The next question is on SEC 4, carrying on the tax theme.  You are going to get a step-up in -- this is a section 88, right?  You are going to get a step-up in the undepreciated capital costs of the assets for tax purposes.  So you will have higher capital cost allowance than you would otherwise have.  Correct?

MR. BASILIO:  We're speaking in regard to --


MR. SHEPHERD:  This is the --


MR. BASILIO:  -- the Hydro One Brampton acquisition?

MR. SHEPHERD:  Yes.

MR. BASILIO:  That's correct.  The transaction has been structured such that there ultimately there will be a step in cost base -- a step in the tax basis of the Hydro One Brampton assets, which would give rise to additional -- you know, the extent of the allocation, CCA, ECP deductions, those sort of things.

MR. SHEPHERD:  Given the numbers you put in here, it looks like the tax shield, the savings, the net savings and taxes grossed up, are about $2.8 million a year as a result of the bump.  Does that sound about right?

MR. BASILIO:  Just give me a second.  I think what we provided here is what the present value of the tax benefit would be across the 34-year period.

MR. SHEPHERD:  I understand.  I am asking does $2.82 million per year sound about right for the annual shield?

It's just seven percent of 152 million at the tax rate.

MR. BASILIO:  Subject to check, that math works, yes.

MR. SHEPHERD:  The reason I am asking that is because you’ve said elsewhere, I can't figure out -- I can't find it, but I know it is in there somewhere, that your annual cost of the premium is 8.1 million a year for 35 years -- for 25 years, right?

MR. BASILIO:  Sorry, I didn't quite --


MR. SHEPHERD:  The premium is costing you 8.1 million a year for 25 years, right?

MR. BASILIO:  Right.  200 million divided by 25 is about $8 million a year.  So the gross premium would be about 8 million, yes.

MR. SHEPHERD:  And so your real costs of the Brampton purchase is that, less the 2.8 million in tax savings each year, right?

MR. BASILIO:  The net cost of the premium would of course be the gross cost, less the tax benefit would be -- less the tax savings on the shield created would certainly be a way of looking at that.

MR. SHEPHERD:  And then the other thing that you have going -- happening here is that you have the income from Hydro One Brampton also going into the merged company, which is a further -– basically, your income plus your tax savings are a great deal more than your annual costs of the premium, right?

MR. BASILIO:  I mean, over time that would be true.

MR. SHEPHERD:  Okay.  Have you done an internal rate-of-return calculation on that acquisition?

[Witness panel confers]

MR. BASILIO:  I believe we did do an IRR calculation and subject to check, I believe it broke pretty close to nine percent.

It was very close to the margin of what Brampton would have earned otherwise.

And when you consider that -- and the reason that makes sense when you consider it in IRR terms is, of course, you pay the premium on day one.  You recover that premium over time.

So when you are doing a present value calculation, $202 million equals $202 million on day one from a MPV perspective.  Tax benefit comes in over time, the earnings come in over a very long time, and so really all things considered -- again subject to check, and we will check and come back to you, I believe it was -- I believe it was pretty close to nine percent.

MR. SHEPHERD:  Is there any reason why you can't file that IRR calculation?

[Witness panel confers]

MR. BASILIO:  We believe this calculation is somewhere in the model, and so we will try to provide that for you -- sorry, the interrogatory didn't ask for the IRR.  Am I missing something?

MR. SHEPHERD:  No.  It came out of your answer.  I looked at the calculations and I said, okay, well, what does that mean.

MR. BASILIO:  Okay.

MS. HELT:  So then that will be undertaking JTC1.2, to provide the internal rate-of-return calculation for the acquisition of Hydro One Brampton.
UNDERTAKING NO. JTC1.2:  TO PROVIDE THE INTERNAL RATE-OF-RETURN CALCULATION FOR THE ACQUISITION OF HYDRO ONE BRAMPTON.


MR. SHEPHERD:  Then my next question is on SEC 5.  This actually comes up in a number of IRs, but I am just happening to use this one.

There is a couple of things in the Horizon settlement agreement, the existing one, that are complicated by the merger.  The first is the capital variance account and the second is the earnings sharing mechanism.

And you were asked a bunch of different ways by a bunch of different parties what you are going to do about that.  And basically the answer was -- I think was you haven't figured it out yet.

So I am wondering if you can assist with a little more explanation of where you are on that.

MS. BUTANY-DESOUZA:  Sure.  So SEC 5, which is where you took us, has the question.  It has been asked by I believe Energy Probe, and potentially CCC as well.

Our responses are consistent across the three, and I wouldn't characterize them as we haven't figured it out.  I think first, first and foremost we recognize that we're bound by that settlement agreement and so will LDC Co be.

We haven't at all absolved ourselves of that and we expect to continue to report the elements that you have just identified, Mr. Shepherd.

So the part that perhaps is a work-in-progress is on the how we will continue to do that.  But the intention is to continue to do that.

The capital investment variance account, the ESM and the efficiency adjustment are the three elements likely that you would be referencing, and we expect to continue to report on all three.

I think the important thing to bear in mind here, though, is that currently before the Board is Horizon Utilities annual filing for 2017 rates.  Now, that reports the -- all of those elements for 2015 actuals.

In 2017, we'll be filing for 2018 rates for the Horizon Utilities rate zone.  At that time, we will still be reporting on actuals for 2016, and that's Horizon Utilities still as a stand-alone, unless, like you’ve said, by some miracle this closes -- a decision in this matter was tomorrow.

So presumably, 2016 actuals are Horizon Utilities stand-alone as well.

So that puts us at a 2018 filing made by LDC Co. for all four rate zones for the Horizon Utilities annual filing for rates effective 2019, with reporting on 2017 actuals.

So that would be the first time reporting on an actuals basis would be for Horizon Utilities rate zone was within LDC Co. and we would be reporting on these elements.

I think the point I am trying to make here in a rather drawn-out manner is that we have a bit of time to distinguish and determine how we're going to get to that filing.  But the intention is to be able to report for the Horizon Utilities' rate zone satisfying the stand-alone settlement agreement into which we had entered in good faith.

MR. SHEPHERD:  Okay.  So here's -- there had been a suggestion -- prior to your filing the application, there had been a suggestion that these things didn't apply any more because you were merging.

I am not saying you said it.  The suggestion was discussed in the industry.  All bets are off now; it is a merger.

So I just want to make sure I am clear that, for example, the earnings sharing -- although the Board's policy on mergers has an earnings sharing policy, you are agreeing that for Horizon's purposes, during the period of your agreement, that earnings sharing applies.  Right?

MS. BUTANY-DESOUZA:  So that earnings sharing would apply for years -- effectively for years 1 to 3 of the rebasing deferral period.

MR. SHEPHERD:  Yes.

MS. BUTANY-DESOUZA:  And for those -- for what would be attributable to Horizon Utilities on a stand-alone basis.

MR. BASILIO:  As if the merger had never occurred.  That is our challenge, of course.

MR. SHEPHERD:  Okay, I do understand.

The next question I have is on SEC6, and my question is on the second page.  I was trying to figure out how, if you have growth and billing determinants, you could possibly collect an ICM amount for ten years and it would still roughly match your revenue requirement for a depreciating asset.

And I guess what I see from this table is two things, and tell me whether this is right.  First of all, as time goes on, you lose the tax shield which is built into the initial revenue requirement and as a result the revenue requirement starts to move back up a little bit.

But secondly, you have a shortfall in collection in the first year, and I guess that's the part I don't understand.

[Witness panel confers]

MS. BUTANY-DESOUZA:  Regrettably, Mr. Shepherd, on the current panel -- on the current panel there is no one from Enersource on it, but panel 2 does have an Enersource representative.

We can hold your question -- rather than taking an undertaking, we could address it within panel 2, if that is agreeable with you.

MR. SHEPHERD:  That's fine.

MS. BUTANY-DESOUZA:  Okay.

MR. SHEPHERD:  I am trying to avoid getting panel 2 up, but I am sure this won't be the last time something will be punted to panel 2.

My next question is on SEC 9.  No, I didn't forget 7 and 8, I just didn't have any questions on them.  And on SEC 9, here's what I want to understand about your answer to A.

MS. BUTANY-DESOUZA:  Sorry, to part (b)?

MR. SHEPHERD:  A.

MS. BUTANY-DESOUZA:  A, excuse me.

MR. SHEPHERD:  So Part (a), what we were trying to drive at is, do the applicants believe that they still have the option at some point along the way to say, you know what, we don't like this ten-year deferral any more; we want to come in after seven?  Or does ten years mean ten years and you can't come in earlier?

MS. BUTANY-DESOUZA:  I can confirm that the applicants believe that ten years means ten years, per the OEB policy and the Handbook.  If we wanted to then elect to come in earlier, then there would be a preliminary issue that we would need to satisfy before the Board panel at that time on why we would seek, I guess you would call it an early rebasing in that context.

MR. SHEPHERD:  Well, so -- and the reason why I raise this is because obviously you are proposing about a million ICM applications over this ten-year period, like, every year that I can see.  And the potential exists that those will be controversial and you might not get the money you ask for.

And in that case I can see a circumstance in which you say, well, then we have to come in and do a custom IR for Mergeco.  And is that sort of the back-up plan?  Or is that -- should we assume, no, that can't happen?

MR. BASILIO:  We haven't contemplated a back-up plan.  What's in the business case is really an extrapolation of what we see within the context of Board rate-making policy at this time.

I think Ms. Butany answered the question in terms that -- in terms that if we did come back early we would have a preliminary issue to deal with.  But with all due respect, it's very difficult for us to sit here and project six or seven years forward and try and think about what sort of variance between the plan and where we are might exist and what we might do then.  So I really think that is the totality of our answer on this one.

MR. SHEPHERD:  Okay.  So here's why I am asking the question, and here's what I'm trying to understand more clearly, is you've got ratepayer benefits that are very small in the first five years, then a little bit larger on your forecast in the next five years, and then larger still after that.  Right?

And from the ratepayer's point of view, if we know that we've got those ten years that we don't have to worry about that, then we can at least sort of amortize the benefits over the full ten years.  We might not get them right away, but we will get them.

But if you can come back in year six and say, no, no, no, now we need another rate increase, then suddenly we only have what we have in hand, and that is not much.

And so you understand why we're concerned about this.  I am wondering if you can help understand why this proposal protects against that.


MR. CASS:  So Jay, as I am sure you know, the January 2016 Rate Handbook does set out the Board's expectations, if there was a need or a desire to seek to terminate the deferred rate rebasing period at an early time.

MR. SHEPHERD:  Yes.

MR. CASS:  So I am not sure what the witnesses can add to that.

MR. SHEPHERD:  Okay.  I am just giving them the opportunity to give a fuller explanation, because, you know --


MR. BASILIO:  The only thing I would add is, we do have our ratepayer interests in mind when we're making decisions. Part of -- certainly a significant motivation for doing this transaction is that it is a win-win.  It is a win for shareholders, it's a win for ratepayers.  There's certainly a lot of interest in seeing those ratepayer benefits realized in the first ten years as well as thereafter.

And so, again, I don't have a crystal ball for what might happen in years six or seven.  It would be subject to Board policy if we, you know, if we were to come forward with a threshold issue.  But there is an intention here to see those benefits through.  And really, those are all the protections that we can offer, I think.

MR. SHEPHERD:  Okay.  Let me move to SEC 10.  Right now PowerStream is doing water billing.  Is that right?

MR. GLICKSMAN:  That's correct.

MR. SHEPHERD:  But the other three are not?

MR. BASILIO:  Horizon Utilities does water billing for the City of Hamilton.  It has for years.

MR. SHEPHERD:  But not St. Catharines?

MR. BASILIO:  It does not do it for -- it does it for the City of Hamilton, not St. Catharines.

MR. SHEPHERD:  Here's what I'm wondering.  There are presumably operating efficiencies that you will get from water billing, and you may in fact want to expand water billing to other parts of the LDC Co. --


MR. BASILIO:  It sounds like a great business opportunity.

MR. GLICKSMAN:  Just one clarification.  It's not a given.  If you can remember, the City of Barrie actually used to get water billing from PowerStream, and it decided no longer to take it, that it could do it cheaper outside of PowerStream.

So it's not obvious that Mergeco will have that ability to provide water billing services beyond what it currently provides.

MR. SHEPHERD:  I understand that.  And I actually only have a simple question here, and that is, if there are additional operating efficiencies from water billing, who gets them?  The shareholders?

MR. BASILIO:  So the benefit of -- I will speak to the Hamilton case.  And this is one manner within which you can have a good allocation of benefits between shareholders and customers, and that is that, as I am sure you would appreciate, by taking on additional billing you create an economy of scale within your customer service.

MR. SHEPHERD:  Yes.

MR. BASILIO:  But some of that capital is at risk, relative to the provision of a service under, you know, a short-term contract.  Our contracts are, you know, are -- Hamilton's contract is five years.  I am not sure about PowerStream's or where it is at.

And so I think the outcome of that is, there is a benefit for customers, but there's also a margin earned that, in our view, is properly allocated to shareholders, and that has been the basis of Horizon's rate filings over -- well, since 2002, I believe, when we first -- when we first undertook water billing for the City of Hamilton.

MR. SHEPHERD:  And any --


MR. GLICKSMAN:  Or PowerStream, actually, the benefit goes to the ratepayers.  If you remember from our 2013 submission, that it's a revenue offset.  So that amount is at risk, should -- I think we have a three-year term, and should our shareholders decide no longer to have water billing services provided by Mergeco, then that revenue offset is still built into rates.

MR. SHEPHERD:  I understand that.  And the converse is that if you make more money from water billing, then it's not until 2027 that the ratepayers get any of the benefit of that.  Is that right?

MR. BASILIO:  That's correct.

MR. SHEPHERD:  Okay, thanks.  SEC 12 is my next question.

And what we were driving at here is, we're concerned that you have what?  34 executives?  I think you have 34 in the executive --


MR. BASILIO:  If I could, Mr. Shepherd.  We have an HR executive on panel 2 that we think it would be more appropriate for her to respond to this question.  Frankly she would give you a better response than we can, I think.

MR. SHEPHERD:  You don't know the question yet and two of the people who are affected are on this panel.

So you have 34 executives, right?

MR. BASILIO:  Subject to check.

MR. SHEPHERD:  And 13 of them have employment contracts.  Do any of the executives have independent contractor arrangements?

MR. BASILIO:  That, I believe is personal information.  I would look to my --


MR. SHEPHERD:  I am not asking for names.

MR. BASILIO:  I understand.  And I don't have that answer, actually.

MR. GLICKSMAN:  I don't either.

MS. BUTANY-DESOUZA:  No.

MR. BASILIO:  I don't know.  I would -- again, I would direct that question to panel 2.

MR. SHEPHERD:  So, Mr. Basilio and Mr. Glicksman, do you have employment contracts that have a change of control provision?

MR. CASS:  Well, Jay, that is clearly personal information, asking the question in that fashion.

MR. SHEPHERD:  So is that a refusal?

MR. BASILIO:  Yes.

MR. SHEPHERD:  I am going to ask it again at the oral hearing, where I will get the answer.

MR. BASILIO:  Okay.

MR. SHEPHERD:  The concern, Mr. Cass, is that there is the potential for perception that the executives looked after themselves in this process.  And that doesn't look good.

So I am trying to get enough facts out to get rid of that perception.

MR. CASS:  That's fine, Jay, but I am not sure how any of this has anything to do with the no harm test.  That's the difficulty I am having.

MR. SHEPHERD:  All right.  Sorry.

If the executives have gotten extra perks as part of the transaction, which means that the benefits are lower, that's not relevant to the Board?

MR. CASS:  Jay, there is no suggestion that the executives have received extra perks.  And, yes, the point that you are raising does not, in any way, suggest that there is harm to ratepayers.

MR. SHEPHERD:  All right.

MR. BASILIO:  I think I would offer a follow-up response to that, that the synergies and the costs and the transaction are considered in totality.

So these sort of considerations would have been built in to ...

MR. SHEPHERD:  Sorry.  So if the benefits are $600 million and the executives took 150 million of it, that would still be okay and not relevant to the Board?  Really?

MR. BASILIO:  I think, excuse me, if you follow the model through, the evidence we filed is that there are $425.9 million of net benefits in the first -- net cash benefits in the first ten years.  Those $425.9 million of benefits, relative to the status quo, flow down through income and into dividends.

I mean, that is the way it works.  Those net benefits are calculated as the difference between synergies and transaction costs.

MR. SHEPHERD:  And it should not be relevant to the Board if the actual benefits available are a lot more?

MR. BASILIO:  I believe the no harm test is no harm to customers, and the transaction remains financially viable.

MR. SHEPHERD:  Okay.

MR. BASILIO:  So on that basis, no, I don't think that question is relevant.

MR. SHEPHERD:  All right.  My next question is on SEC 13, and it is a simple question of clarification, I think, as are all of my questions.

If you go from two control rooms to one, am I understanding correctly this answer that you will save four or $5 million a year starting whenever you do that?  Is that a fair conclusion?

[Witness panel confers]

MS. BUTANY-DESOUZA:  We would offer that this is best answered by panel 2.

MR. SHEPHERD:  Okay.  My next question is on SEC 14, and I am just trying to understand why you have three head offices.  And lots of people ask you questions about this, and so I am not sure -- I am sure you are not surprised.

But let me start by asking, am I right in assuming that if you didn't start with the three head offices, you probably wouldn't build three?  You would probably build one, or maybe two?  Is that fair?

MR. BASILIO:  Again, I apologize for the inconvenience, but this is really a question for panel 2.

MR. SHEPHERD:  Okay.  My next question is on SEC 17.  So you are proposing that you are not going to file a distribution system plan until 2019, is that right?

MS. BUTANY-DESOUZA:  Yes.  We anticipate filing a consolidated DSP for LDC Co. by 2019.

MR. SHEPHERD:  But you have forecasts of your capital spend starting from now.

MR. BASILIO:  Yes, we do.

MS. BUTANY-DESOUZA:  Yes.

MR. SHEPHERD:  So where did you get the forecast if you didn't do a distribution system plan?

MR. BASILIO:  The forecasts -- the way the business case was built, each of the four consolidating entities have a distribution system plan, some of which -- I think three of which, subject to check, have been reviewed in a rate proceeding.

MS. BUTANY-DESOUZA:  Yes, that's right.

MR. BASILIO:  So essentially the way we built the business case is we took those distribution system plans, we aggregated them, and then we considered where are opportunities for synergies, both capital and operating.  So that is the nature of the synergies.  So we built them up by the individual DSPs of the four utilities, but I mean we haven't prepared a -- we don't have a DSP, as Ms. Butany -- like a consolidated distribution system.

As I am sure you would appreciate, that is a great deal of work.

MR. SHEPHERD:  Well, I mean you have the distribution system pans, right?

MR. BASILIO:  Yes.

MR. SHEPHERD:  So, and you have gone through line by line and said, no, we don't need to do that, no, that is going to be half as much money, et cetera, all the way through, right?  You have already done that?

MR. BASILIO:  That exercise has been undertaken -- to the extent of a line-by-line basis on every pole and transformer and whatnot, I suspect not.

Certainly there has been a great deal of work in identifying synergies within the capital plan.

Most of those synergies, if I might just expand a little bit, as you can imagine -- and I believe this has been identified in the evidence, some are avoided costs on IT systems.

We're moving from four systems to one for each of the parties and, as you are aware, things like CIS are very expensive, ERP are very expensive, the associated maintenance fees, licensing fees and what not with those items, and the associated staffing to support four separate processes.

So a great deal of the synergies, including the capital synergies, are really associated with what I would say are non-wires and poles stuff for the most part.

I mean in Hamilton, irrespective of the merger, we continue to have to replace underground on the mountain, and so...

MR. SHEPHERD:  But you have breakdowns of your proposed spend, capital spend year by year, that have reductions in system renewal and system service and so it is not that there is none.

MR. BASILIO:  No.  System renewal; in fact, I don't believe there is any reduction in system renewal, other than, you know, other than -- and I believe we identified this as well.  I believe there is some provision for volume purchasing, those sort of things.

Let me respond this way.  In terms of the activity to support wires and poles investments in the DSP, that activity has not changed.

Pricing may have changed a little bit, based on assumptions around volume purchases, that sort of thing.

MR. SHEPHERD:  All right.  So you are proposing 2019, three years from now.  If the Board said to you, no, we want it next year, is that possible?

[Witness panel confers]

MR. BASILIO:  I think that is mission impossible, and I will answer that in two different ways.  Firstly, it is a great deal of work that you have to get out ahead of to create a distribution system plan.

There are four entities coming together here.  That will be a great deal of work.  We are bringing four entities together.  And those resources have been motivated to effect the transition, and that is a great deal of work, and you have seen in the business case that that is probably a 30-month process.

So for those two reasons, to try and produce a comprehensive distribution system plan that is Energy Board-worthy I think is mission impossible.

MR. SHEPHERD:  Okay.  My next question is on SEC 26.  Just rolling right along.  And it is a simple question.  This relates to one-time costs in your current rates.

Have you done an estimate of how much those are?  Are they a material item?  And are they included in your savings estimate?

MS. BUTANY-DESOUZA:  We haven't done that estimate.

MR. SHEPHERD:  No?

MS. BUTANY-DESOUZA:  No.

MR. SHEPHERD:  So are the one-time costs included in your savings estimates?

[Witness panel confers]

MS. BUTANY-DESOUZA:  Sorry, following our discussion now I have forgotten your question.  So can you ask me your question again?

MR. SHEPHERD:  Yes.  You have -- in your various rates --


MS. BUTANY-DESOUZA:  So an example would be like Horizon Utilities custom IR application costs that would have been split, divided by five, and included in rates over the five-year period.

MR. SHEPHERD:  Okay.  And similarly with PowerStream and --


MS. BUTANY-DESOUZA:  Correct.

MR. SHEPHERD:  -- Enersource and I guess with Hydro One Brampton too.

MS. BUTANY-DESOUZA:  Right.

MR. SHEPHERD:  And there may be other one-time costs in your various applications.  I didn't look.  And so it may be a few million dollars, right?

MS. BUTANY-DESOUZA:  I don't -- I don't know that it's that high.  I can't even quote a number.

MR. SHEPHERD:  Well, the reason I am asking is because you're not going to spend those over the period 'til 2026, right?

MS. BUTANY-DESOUZA:  Well, for instance, the application costs, that expenditure has already been made.  So over the period we're recovering that which we have already spent.

MR. SHEPHERD:  Then you are continuing to recover it after you have already recovered all of it, right?

MS. BUTANY-DESOUZA:  Insofar as they're part of base rates, yes, I see your point.

MR. SHEPHERD:  So --


MS. BUTANY-DESOUZA:  I don't, however -- I think you started your question with "are they material", and I cannot -- we can undertake to provide a snapshot of that, but at least from a Horizon Utilities perspective, from our custom IR application, the one-time costs was limited to the application costs.  So --


MR. SHEPHERD:  I am just -- the only reason I am asking this is because you've got two custom IRs, so they could be fairly substantial numbers.  I haven't looked and seen what the numbers are, and I don't want to spend a lot of time on it if it is not material, but if it is, we should know.

MR. BASILIO:  They're not material.

MS. BUTANY-DESOUZA:  They're not material.

MR. BASILIO:  They are not material.  Not in the context of a combined $550 million distribution revenue requirement.  They're not.

MR. SHEPHERD:  All right, okay, thanks.

Then my next question is on SEC 29.  And I am going to skip right over the spreadsheet, to your great disappointment, I'm sure, and get to page 5.  And on page 5 we were asking about the rationale of the allocation of benefits of the transaction between customers and shareholders.  And what we were basically asking is, why should the Board's policy apply in this case?

And so I am trying to understand whether you have -- whether you are intending to justify application of the Board's policy here, or you are simply saying the policy is the policy and we don't have anything to say about it.  We're just applying it.

MR. BASILIO:  Well, I will say a couple of things.  The policy is the policy.  The policy is a new policy.  The, you know, the objects of the Board include protection of customers with respect to price, financial viability of the sector.

This is a new policy.  These are new guidelines.  They have been put together thoughtfully by Board Staff and the Board.  And so it would be presumptuous for us to really make a policy comment, I think.  It would be presumptuous for us to say anything about the Board's policy in this regard --


MR. SHEPHERD:  Well, you have said something, though.  You said, well, the shareholders approved the murder on -- merger on the basis -- murder was not intended to be -- that was not an intentional statement.

[Laughter]

The merger on the basis that they were going to get all the benefits.  So --


MR. BASILIO:  No.  The shareholders approved the transaction on the basis of the customer and shareholder benefits in the business plan.

MR. SHEPHERD:  Well, yes, except the shareholder benefits are a lot more than the customer benefits.

MR. BASILIO:  No.  They are not.  In fact, if you were to do a present value of the $69 million annuity and the savings relative to the status quo in the first ten years compared to the present value of the after-tax benefits to the shareholders in the first ten years, you would find number 1 outweighs number 2 significantly.

MR. SHEPHERD:  The first ten years you're talking about?

MR. BASILIO:  In the first ten years shareholders have $425.9 million of pre-tax benefits.  Now, some of those are amortized, right, because some of them are capital.  So they're not all immediate.  They don't all fall to the bottom line.

MR. SHEPHERD:  Understood.

MR. BASILIO:  Customers benefit in the first ten years, would all be the status quo.  I don't think I need to go -- I mean --


MR. SHEPHERD:  Not $400 million.

MR. BASILIO:  Not $400 million, but thereafter they benefit by $69 million a year in perpetuity.

MR. SHEPHERD:  I see.  So you are saying if you count the savings forever the ratepayers benefit.

MR. BASILIO:  If you count -- right, if you count the savings after the ten years forever and the savings within the first ten years, customers are far and away better off from a rate perspective.  But they're also better off, in terms of a larger, more financially viable utility, and, you know, generally speaking -- sorry?

MR. SHEPHERD:  How does that help them?

MR. BASILIO:  It helps them with respect to distribution system investment.

MR. SHEPHERD:  And what's the outcome that they get for that?

MR. BASILIO:  More security of investment, that you've got a viable entity that can continue to provide long-term investment.

MR. SHEPHERD:  How does that help them?  I'm sorry, I don't understand.  Does that improve --


MR. BASILIO:  It helps them in terms of reliability.

MR. SHEPHERD:  So you are saying your reliability is going to improve?

MR. BASILIO:  I think over time it will, yes.

MR. SHEPHERD:  Do we have a commitment in here for that?

MR. BASILIO:  No, we don't.  There are no commitments for those sorts of things.  These are, I think, reasonable assertions that larger, better capitalized entities are generally more liquid and able to provide better for investment than smaller, liquidity-constrained entities.

MR. SHEPHERD:  All right.  So my next question is on SEC 31.  You have refused to provide the shareholders' agreement because you said it is in draft.  And you have refused to provide the existing shareholders' agreement because they're not going to be applicable on closing.  Right?

MS. BUTANY-DESOUZA:  Yes, that's correct.

MR. SHEPHERD:  So is there going to be a shareholders' agreement on closing?

MS. BUTANY-DESOUZA:  Yes.

MR. SHEPHERD:  Will that shareholders' agreement limit the ability of the directors to do whatever they want by some form of shareholder control, which is what shareholders' agreements do.

MR. BASILIO:  So we have provided in evidence, there's a document that was presented to Markham that compares the -- CCC 11, that compares the PowerStream current shareholder agreement to the draft Mergeco shareholders' agreement at that time.

And I think what you would find if you referred to that material, is that there are a number of -- there are some restrictions on what the business can do without shareholder approval.

MR. SHEPHERD:  Okay.  But you are not willing to provide the shareholders' agreement that will be applicable?

MR. BASILIO:  That's correct.  It is a draft document and, you know, based on the Board's guidelines, we're not required to produce draft agreements.

MR. SHEPHERD:  All right.  Then my next question is on SEC 39.  Our understanding was that you need an approval by March 10th of next year in order to avoid the termination provision in the agreement.

You're saying in this answer that it is December 31st, that you have to have approval by December 31st?  I am not sure I understand that.  Perhaps you could help me.

MR. BASILIO:  So we articulated the relevant sections of the merger participation agreement and the share purchase agreement that do have drop-dead dates in them.

I mean, do you have a specific question?  I mean I think I outlined those provisions in this IR response.  Purchaser, the vendor may terminate if such closing has not occurred by the end of December 31st, 2016.  Consequently, there is a risk that the purchase-sale of Hydro One Brampton may not be realized, if the Board does not approve the application with sufficient time to conclude the purchase-sale of Hydro One Brampton by December 31st, 2016.

MR. SHEPHERD:  Okay.  My next question is on SEC 41.  Can you advise whether Mr. Benz, Mr. Cananzi and Mr. Gregg will be witnesses at the oral hearing?

MR. BASILIO:  No, they will not.

MR. SHEPHERD:  All right.  I have maybe ten minutes more of finance questions, I think, or fifteen.  The first is on AMPCO 2.

MS. BUTANY-DESOUZA:  And that is AMPCO IR 2, not technical conference?

MR. SHEPHERD:  Yes, sorry, it is IR 2.

MS. BUTANY-DESOUZA:  Okay.

MR. SHEPHERD:  B-AMPCO-2, and I have two questions on this.  When I look through your assumptions, your status quo assumptions -- and I think your second paragraph in your response in (a) says the same thing -- your assumption is that any time somebody comes in for a rebasing, they're going to get a substantially higher rate increase than they would get under IRM.  Is that right?

MR. BASILIO:  Essentially, what the assumption is is that in the absence of the merger, the merging parties would continue to file successive custom IR applications and their underlying cost, OM&A cost and capital cost projections, would form part of rate base and revenue requirement would be imputed there on.

MR. SHEPHERD:  That is not responsive to my question.  My question was:  Do your assumptions assume that there will be a substantially higher rate increase in a rebasing year than in an IRM year in every case?

MR. BASILIO:  I would say there would be an increase relative to IR.

MR. SHEPHERD:  Okay, thank you.

Then the other question on this is -- on this IR is relating to the Navigant analysis.

Mr. Glicksman, you said that your shareholders, your municipal shareholders, got both the Navigant and the Deloitte numbers, right?

MR. GLICKSMAN:  Correct.

MR. SHEPHERD:  Where did Navigant get its data from?  Didn't it get it from the same place?

MR. GLICKSMAN:  Navigant had the information that the three parties that had performed, including the Deloitte model, and then they made their own assumptions and ran the models separately.

MR. SHEPHERD:  So does that mean that management of PowerStream doesn't support the Navigant conclusions?  Or you do support those conclusions?

MR. GLICKSMAN:  Navigant conclusions are somewhat different.  I will give you an example of one area where they are different.

PowerStream is allowed a certain amount of -- we have shareholder debt, and the Board has set a rate for shareholder debt.

In the Navigant analysis, they assumed that PowerStream would continue to pay a higher rate to its shareholder; in effect, a higher dividend.

So in that sense, they made different assumptions in various areas about -- for example, they assumed PowerStream has a 50 percent dividend payout ratio.  So there were different assumptions in areas that Navigant made, and that resulted in their having different conclusions than we would have had.

MR. SHEPHERD:  So since you are going with the business model, so we shouldn't take the Navigant stuff and say that's what's going to happen?

MR. GLICKSMAN:  We had an average -- in terms of our average community reductions and theirs, our numbers are very close, and then that our PowerStream shareholders came to the same conclusion to support the merger on the basis of the customer benefits and the financial benefits associated with the merger.

So they weren't contradictory.  They weren't exactly the same, but I would say that they were complementary.

MR. SHEPHERD:  Now one of the things I have been trying to figure out throughout this – and I don't actually have it in front of me, the Navigant stuff, but maybe you will remember this.

Navigant ultimately concluded that the PowerStream shareholders would net about $400 million of benefits out of this transaction, just a little over $400 million.

And then I see your application which says that all of the shareholders net about $400 million, or $425 or something.

MR. GLICKSMAN:  I can't comment on that.

MR. SHEPHERD:  There is no substantial difference in that respect, right, between the --


MR. GLICKSMAN:  I can't comment on the number you just quoted for Navigant.

MR. SHEPHERD:  No?  Okay.

MR. GLICKSMAN:  In fact, I was under the impression in the meetings I was at that Navigant’s benefits to the shareholders were less than the benefits that we represented as the three of us in our business case, that they felt our numbers were -- their assessment was more conservative than our assessment in the business case.

MR. SHEPHERD:  All right.  My next question is on AMPCO 6, and it is a simple question.  You have table 1 and then the blacked out the table on page 3 of 2.

I didn't make that up.  And I have only one question about those two tables, and that is:  Are these regulated FTEs only, or are they all FTEs?

MS. BUTANY-DESOUZA:  Again, this is a question for panel 2.

MR. SHEPHERD:  All right.

Do we have -- I am looking at AMPCO 9, page 3.  I looked for the spreadsheet that backs up this figure 1.  Do you see figure 1 there?

MS. BUTANY-DESOUZA:  I see it.

MR. BASILIO:  Yes.

MR. SHEPHERD:  And --


MS. BUTANY-DESOUZA:  Table 1, you mean?

MR. SHEPHERD:  No.  Figure 1.

MS. BUTANY-DESOUZA:  No.  AMPCO 9?  Oh.

MR. BASILIO:  Oh, Figure 1, yes, yes.

MR. SHEPHERD:  And so I actually -- I found it in the model, but I couldn't find it anywhere else in the evidence.  And maybe it is there and I just haven't found it.  But is this something you can provide?

MR. BASILIO:  I believe it is distilled from the model.

MR. SHEPHERD:  No, I know.  But I would like to have it on the record.  I would like to have the numbers behind this on the record.

MR. BASILIO:  Which numbers?

MR. SHEPHERD:  The calculation of these distribution revenue trends.  I mean, it may well be in the evidence somewhere.  I just couldn't find it.  That's all.

[Witness panel confers]

MS. BUTANY-DESOUZA:  Yes, we can undertake to provide it.  It's not currently in evidence, whether pre-filed or responses to interrogatories.

MS. HELT:  Okay.  Undertaking JTC1.3 will be to provide the supporting information that backs up the figure 1 chart entitled "Distribution Revenue Trends" on page 3 of the response to AMPCO 9.
UNDERTAKING NO. JTC1.3:  TO PROVIDE THE SUPPORTING INFORMATION THAT BACKS UP THE FIGURE 1 CHART ENTITLED "DISTRIBUTION REVENUE TRENDS" ON PAGE 3 OF THE RESPONSE TO AMPCO 9.

MR. SHEPHERD:  We would like that as an Excel spreadsheet if it's possible, because it is probably how you have it anyway.  It is probably how you made the graph.

MS. BUTANY-DESOUZA:  Okay.

MR. SHEPHERD:  My next question is on Staff 5.  And this asks about the cost centres.  I am not really pursuing the savings from the cost centre as much as I want to know, and it is sort of a broader question.  Have any commitments been made to St. Catharines, for example, or to Hamilton about where things will be located?

Have you told them, this is what's going to happen in your community?

[Witness panel confers]

MR. SHEPHERD:  There's some material in the confidential material that talks about this, but I didn't want to raise it if I don't have to.

MS. BUTANY-DESOUZA:  Right.  We are just looking it up.

[Witness panel confers]

MR. SHEPHERD:  Can I tell you where it is without breaching confidentiality?

MS. BUTANY-DESOUZA:  Sure.

MR. SHEPHERD:  In the presentations to Hamilton and St. Catharines in the confidential material about mid-way through the PowerPoint.  That's one place.  It is in all sorts of places.  That's just one I happened to notice this morning.

[Witness panel confers]

MS. BUTANY-DESOUZA:  I think we would need to go in camera for a response.  That material was filed confidentially.

MR. SHEPHERD:  Yeah, no, I am not asking you to read out that material or to -- what I am asking you to do is to make a -- is to talk generally about what sort of commitments have been made to the various communities about how much economic activity will be done in their community by your merged utility.

Can you provide us with information on what sort of commitments have been made or what sort of -- I am not going to say promises, but indications have been made to the communities, because this matters to them, right?

Is that what is showing on the screen?  Is that actually a confidential document?  Maybe it's not.

[Witness panel confers]

Maybe I can deal with this a different way, because I don't want to waste time with it.  Can you undertake to provide a summary of what has been either promised or committed or indicated to the various communities about what activities will take place in their communities and for how long?

MR. BASILIO:  I don't think we can do something as broadly as that.  I think what we were looking for in the agreements is did we contractually commit to anything, but broadly speaking, I am not aware of -- other than what may be contractually committed -- and I think that is where we need to go.  Unfortunately I can't do that -- and we would undertake to do that.

MR. SHEPHERD:  Just tell us about --


MR. BASILIO:  But more broadly, you know, people saying, well, you know, we think we will do this, or we will contribute to this event, no, I can't do anything as broadly as that.  I might be able to deal with contractual commitments to the extent there are any.

MR. SHEPHERD:  Fine.  Why don't we start with that.

MR. BASILIO:  Okay.  We will take that as an undertaking.

MS. HELT:  Okay.  So that will be Undertaking JTC1.4.
UNDERTAKING NO. JTC1.4:  TO ADVISE AS TO WHETHER ANYTHING WAS CONTRACTUALLY COMMITTED TO.

MR. SHEPHERD:  Now, I haven't been able to -- I can't actually find the reference, but I am going to ask you the question anyway.  It is in one of the interrogatory responses.  I just -- I was looking for it right now -- where you say that your decisions about operating the utility are not going to be influenced by the impacts on the local communities.  That is, if you have to spend capital in Mississauga you have to spend it in Mississauga, and it doesn't matter whether PowerStream isn't getting their fair share.

Am I understanding that correctly, it is just not part of your operational considerations?

MR. BASILIO:  I think that is a question for the operations panel in terms of how operating -- I mean, generally speaking, the expectation is that we will spend capital -- the current capital plans on which the business case was built are the DSPs of the individual utilities.  So in Hamilton, there's an expectation that we're going to continue to spend on underground on the mountain and, you know, PowerStream has similar programs, as does Enersource.

So I am not quite sure -- I am not quite sure what the -- I am not quite sure what the question is, Mr. Shepherd.

MR. SHEPHERD:  Well, okay.  Don't you have to reprioritize, once you are one entity?  And say, okay, what's the most -- we only have so much money.  What's the most important thing to spend it on right now.

MR. BASILIO:  Well, the expectation is, in terms of the amount of money that we will have, is we'll have the envelopes and the programs that are in the business case model.

So the business case is built on having -- having the funds to undertake all of the -- you know, subject to PowerStream doing a little bit of work now on its rate decision, which is frankly a relatively small amount in terms of the capital program change relative to the business model -- the expectation is that the distribution system plans are provided for in the business case.

So there is no reprioritization in terms of whether we spend on this program in PowerStream or whether we spend on the mountain program in Hamilton.  The expectation is that those programs continue, and there's nothing that we see right now that we can't continue with those programs.

So this is a hypothetical really, I think.  I mean, right now the expectation is that we continue to fund the programs that are in our DSPs.

MR. SHEPHERD:  So right now -- and Mr. Glicksman, you sit on this committee, I think, that does this at PowerStream -- PowerStream has several areas in Aurora, in Barrie, and its municipalities north of Toronto, and has a capital plan that is common to the entire organization, right?

MR. GLICKSMAN:  Correct.

MR. SHEPHERD:  And when you make decisions about spending money on capital, you prioritize based on what's the most important spending to do, right?

MR. GLICKSMAN:  Correct.

MR. SHEPHERD:  And so I thought that Mergeco would be doing the same thing, just with more areas; is that not right?

MR. GLICKSMAN:  Ms. Butany mentioned to you -- you asked a question earlier about the DSP.  Mergeco has not done a DSP.  As John has indicated, the business plan is predicated on the DSPs of the individual utilities and that there are sufficient funds allowed for in the business plan to maintain the capital spending as per the current DSPs.

MR. SHEPHERD:  So you won't be doing the same sort of ongoing prioritization that PowerStream does right now?

MR. GLICKSMAN:  So currently, it is assumed that there will be sufficient capital availability recovered in rates to be able to support all of the initiatives that are in the current DSPs.

It could be -- I think what you're suggesting is when there is a new DSP, will those priorities be different.

That we cannot conjecture at this point in time.

MR. SHEPHERD:  All right.  I am not quite finished.  I would like to ask one more question before the break, and I am not quite finished.  I have to do a little bit more after the break.  If you want to take a break now.

MS. HELT:  Certainly, hmm-hmm.

MR. SHEPHERD:  Let me ask one question, and this is from Staff 11.  You are talking about making rate applications, and I am going to sort of bring in a bunch of different things that relate to this.

The thing I don't understand is, after closing, are you four LDCs or one LDC?

MS. BUTANY-DESOUZA:  One LDC, with four rate zones.

MR. SHEPHERD:  All right.  And so you are contemplating that you will file your rate applications separately for the four rate zones, as if they were separate LDCs?

MS. BUTANY-DESOUZA:  We will file likely -- and this is still in the development stage because we're not there yet -- but it would likely be one application, if you imagine one IRM application with three tabs to it, and each of those tabs pertains to the rates related to the particular rate zones.

Had PowerStream been on custom IR, their custom IR application had been filed and they came out of that with subsequent annual filings, then there would be an annual filing application with two annual filings in it.

Perhaps what we will be filing is an overall application that speaks to LDC Co. overall, and has four sections; one an annual filing for Horizon Utilities and three sections related to IRM for the other three rate zones.

MR. SHEPHERD:  And then each of the four components could, depending on the year and the need, have an ICM in it as well?

MS. BUTANY-DESOUZA:  It may.  I think we indicated that in evidence.

MR. SHEPHERD:  So a couple of things arise out of that.  One is, you were asked somewhere how are you going to allocate common costs, and you don't have a system in place for allocating common costs, right?

MS. BUTANY-DESOUZA:  Not as yet, no.  That doesn't mean that we won't.  It just means we don't right now because we're not one.

MR. SHEPHERD:  But once you are one, you do have to allocate common costs as long as you have separate rate zones, right?

MS. BUTANY-DESOUZA:  Yes, that's correct.

MR. SHEPHERD:  And so at what point are you expecting that the Board will review your allocation methodology?

[Witness panel confers]

MS. BUTANY-DESOUZA:  Respectfully, likely in that future rate application.  That's not a matter for this application nor the satisfaction of the no harm test.  That's a rates matter to be dealt with in a rates proceeding.

MR. SHEPHERD:  So in your IRM application?

MS. BUTANY-DESOUZA:  As an example.

MR. SHEPHERD:  Well, you're not suggesting that it's first looked at in 2027?

MS. BUTANY-DESOUZA:  No.  I'm suggesting that in a future rate application, that that's when the Board would review that.

MR. SHEPHERD:  Okay, thanks.  And then the other part of this is, I think you have said that you will have four separate rate zones until the rates converge.  Is that right?

MS. BUTANY-DESOUZA:  Until we determine such a time as we bring forward rate harmonization.

MR. SHEPHERD:  No.  But I think you said that you are expecting the rates to converge.  That's actually going to be my question.  How can the rates converge?

MS. BUTANY-DESOUZA:  We have not said that.

MR. BASILIO:  We haven't said that.  I think what we’ve said in the evidence is that we will consider harmonization at such time as the rate differences are not material.

MR. SHEPHERD:  Okay.  So how are the rate differences going to be less than they are now if everybody is on IRM?

MR. BASILIO:  That's looking forward ten years and it is very difficult to predict what -- I mean, we have projections in the model based on our DSPs.

I suppose -- excuse me for a sec.

It's a matter for cost allocation and rate design.  We haven't done that yet, and we won't be undertaking that until the first rebasing year, which, based on our application is year ten, 2026 I guess now assuming -- 2027, sorry, yes, assuming closing at the end of the year.

MR. SHEPHERD:  That is where I was going with this.  You talk about, well, you're going to wait until the rates -- the differences are material.  But you are actually going to wait until the next rebasing in 2027, right?  You are not going to harmonize before then?

MR. BASILIO:  No, that analysis would be undertaken at that time, rebasing.

MR. SHEPHERD:  Thank you.  Do you want to take a break now?

MS. HELT:  Certainly.  Just to confirm, Mr. Shepherd, do you still have questions for the first witness panel?  Or when we return from the break, should witness panel 2 be up?

MR. SHEPHERD:  Well, what I can suggest is we could put witness panel 2 up.  I only have a couple of questions for them, and then you are going to bring back witness panel 1 anyway, and if I have some more questions I can ask them then.

MS. HELT:  Okay.  When we come back if witness panel 2 is ready to go.  Let's take a break until 25 after 11, so fifteen minutes.  Thank you.
--- Recess taken at 11:10 a.m.
--- On resuming at 11:24 a.m.

MS. HELT:  All right.  Everyone, if we can get started and resume.  Mr. Shepherd?

MR. CASS:  Maureen, perhaps I will just introduce the panel so we have their names on the record, if that's all right.

MS. HELT:  Oh, yes.  My apology.  Of course.

MR. CASS:  I will be very quick.

So starting with the witness furthest from me -- I think everyone knows these people, but we have Colin Macdonald.  Next to Colin is Norm Wolff, then Dan Pastoric, and finally Brenda Schacht.  Thank you.
LDC CO. - PANEL 2

Brenda Schacht

Dan Pastoric
Norman Wolff
Colin Macdonald
Questions by Mr. Shepherd:

MR. SHEPHERD:  Hi, I'm Jay Shepherd.  I think I know all of you.

So the first panel passed over to you the questions they were afraid to answer.  So my first question is on AMPCO 6.  And on AMPCO 6 there is a Table 1, and then on the last page there is what I think is a Table 3.  It is blacked out, but...

And indeed, all three of the tables, I guess, I would ask the same question.  Are these numbers regulated only?

MS. SCHACHT:  Yes, that's correct...

MR. SHEPHERD:  You have to use your microphone.

MS. SCHACHT:  That's correct.  Those are numbers for the regulated entity only.

MR. SHEPHERD:  Okay.  You notice my high-tech system of coding.

My next question is on SEC 6.  And I actually didn't understand why they punted this to you, but they did, and that is if you look at the table on the second page, this is comparing the amount collected on the ICM rate rider against -- oh, I know why, because there was nobody on Enersource on the other panel.  The amount collected in the ICM rate rider against the revenue requirement for those assets.

And so -- and I couldn't understand how if you're billing determinants are going up the rate rider and the revenue requirement could end up being roughly the same.  Over ten years that is not normally possible.

So I see one part that is the PILs has a pattern of tax shield and tax cost over time.  So I get that.  But the other thing is, there's a listing of a shortfall of collection in 2016.  Can you help me understand what that is?

MR. WOLFF:  That is due to the fact that there was a delayed implementation of that ICM rate and it wasn't implemented until May 1st of 2016.  So we see a shortfall in the full -- against the full year costs relating to that asset.

MR. SHEPHERD:  And did the Board, in its decision, say that you got to recover that shortfall?

MR. WOLFF:  Well, not in the same fiscal period, no.  So there was a four-month delay in its implementation.

MR. SHEPHERD:  So if you had just gone to cost of service in 2017, you won't have been able to collect that million dollars, right?

MR. WOLFF:  So --


MR. SHEPHERD:  Sorry, it would have just gone into rate base and that's --


MR. WOLFF:  That's correct, that's correct.

MR. SHEPHERD:  Okay, thank you.

My next question is on SEC 12.  And you have 37 executives -- sorry, 34 executives in the three companies.  I think that was confirmed, right?

MS. SCHACHT:  Yes, that's correct.

MR. SHEPHERD:  Okay.  And so 13 of them have employment contracts.  Some of those contracts were entered into after December 31st, 2014?  I don't want names, I just want to know whether some of them were.

[Witness panel confers]

MS. SCHACHT:  Mr. Shepherd, I don't have that specific information about exactly when contracts were entered into. I don't believe that -- I don't know, actually.  I don't have that information.

MR. SHEPHERD:  You are from which of the companies?

MS. SCHACHT:  I am from Horizon Utilities.

MR. SHEPHERD:  Horizon, okay.

All right.  I will circle back to that in a second.

Are there also independent contractor agreements in place with any of the executives?

MS. SCHACHT:  I would probably go back to the conversation that we had with panel 1, which is, I don't know how that would be relevant to these proceedings.  These are all individual incumbent roles, and their employment terms and conditions therefore would be confidential, but I don't really see how that would impact the current proceedings today.

MR. SHEPHERD:  So are you refusing to answer?

MS. SCHACHT:  Yes.

MR. CASS:  Yes, Jay.

MR. SHEPHERD:  All right.  So then I am going to ask you to file -- without any identifying information as to the individuals, so no names, no titles, you know, none of that stuff, but all the numbers -- the employment contracts for -- or independent contractor contracts for all 34 of the executives.

MR. CASS:  Well, Jay, consistent with the previous answer, we're not going to do that.

MR. SHEPHERD:  Okay.  My next question is on SEC 13.  Do I understand correctly -- and I may be misunderstanding this answer -- but do I understand correctly that if you go from two control rooms to one, then you are expected to save approximately an additional $4 million a year for as long as that continues until you rebase?

MR. PASTORIC:  If you look to SEC 13, I believe the answer is that we're moving from four control rooms to two.

MR. SHEPHERD:  I understand that.

MR. PASTORIC:  In that case in year two we would have approximately $4.3 million ongoing.

MR. SHEPHERD:  That is not my question.  The next option is to move from two to one.

MR. PASTORIC:  In the case of two to one that would be only considered in the case of night shifts where the volume of work is not sufficient.

MR. SHEPHERD:  The evidence says that you are going to consider whether to move from two to one.

MR. PASTORIC:  We haven't done the analysis regarding going to one during the day shift because of the volumes at this time, but it is a consideration that we may look at in the future, but we haven't gone through that analysis.

MR. SHEPHERD:  So you don't know what the impact would be.

MR. PASTORIC:  That's correct, that's correct.

MR. SHEPHERD:  Okay, thanks.

I am trying to understand the three offices.  And I would have thought that Mr. Glicksman and Mr. Basilio would be able to answer this, but they thought that you would prefer to be the people to answer it.

So let's start with the question, am I right in assuming that if you didn't start with these three head offices already you probably wouldn't build three?  You would probably build one.  Right?

MR. PASTORIC:  It would make sense to look at economies of scale.  So the answer would be most likely, yes, if everything was clean slate.  But since we have three existing offices we're being put into using the existing facilities.

MR. SHEPHERD:  Okay.  So then the question is, why wouldn't you -- because we know for, example, that the Mississauga one -- there was a whole thing about, right, how big it was.  You do have some extra room there, right?

MR. PASTORIC:  There is a small section from our last rates case that was too costly to renovate; that's correct.

MR. SHEPHERD:  And so -- and it is central.  So I am not sure I understand why you wouldn't be thinking about selling one of the other ones.

MR. PASTORIC:  Because in the case of any one office or any two offices we can't accommodate all the staff in any two offices.

MR. SHEPHERD:  In any two?

MR. PASTORIC:  Any two.  Or any combination of two.  So we would require all three to be utilized.

MR. SHEPHERD:  Or you would have to expand one.

MR. PASTORIC:  Or we would have to build, which I don't see as prudent when we have existing facilities.

MR. SHEPHERD:  Have you looked at whether there are costs associated with having your staff split up between three locations?

[Witness panel confers]

MS. SCHACHT:  In terms of staff in --


MR. PASTORIC:  Sorry, it is all connected.

MR. SHEPHERD:  They're connected.

MS. SCHACHT:  In terms of the staff and the various locations, the analysis that we have already provided and the numbers in the business case for synergy savings and synergy costs are what we -- are what we anticipate and there would be no -- there are no additional costs for having staff in different locations.

MR. SHEPHERD:  There are no -- so you have done an analysis, and there are no additional costs?  When people have to go to a meeting, they can't go down the hall.  They have to go to another city, and that is not an additional cost?

MS. SCHACHT:  The cost analysis that we have done to date are the costs of the consolidation and integration.  I can't comment on ongoing -- on costs from that perspective at this point, because we are not yet Mergeco.

MR. PASTORIC:  In addition, when -- if we go back to the Enersource case where they moved from one office to two offices, video conferencing was used initially to reduce any transportation costs.  That is not used in every situation, but that is an option now with technology.

MR. SHEPHERD:  So is it fair to say that you haven't done an analysis yet, but you are hopeful that you will be able to use technology and other techniques to reduce any costs associated with having three offices instead of one?

MS. SCHACHT:  That’s correct.

MR. SHEPHERD:  Is that fair?

MS. SCHACHT:  Yes.

MR. SHEPHERD:  Okay.  Now, I have several questions that are on the confidential material and what I am going to ask is -- I am going to try to ask the questions without saying anything that is confidential.  And then I am going to ask you if you can seek to answer without saying anything that is confidential or, if not, raise a red flag and we will go in-house, okay.

So the first is on Staff 7; do you have that?  This obviously can't go up on the screen.  Do you have that?

MS. SCHACHT:  Yes.

MR. SHEPHERD:  And so in table 1, my only question is: Do these numbers include capital payroll and non-payroll reductions, or only OM&A?  You have some payroll reductions that flow through to capital as well, right?

[Witness panel confers]

MS. SCHACHT:  Yes, Jay, that would be only OM&A, not capital.

MR. SHEPHERD:  So could you provide a similar table -- presumably also confidential -- for capital payroll deductions?  I don’t need the non-payroll side, just the payroll --


MS. SCHACHT:  Sorry, can you repeat the question?

MR. SHEPHERD:  A similar table, but for the payroll deductions associated with capital, with whatever the appropriate breakdown is.

MS. SCHACHT:  Mr. Shepherd, we would not have that -- we have not done that kind of analysis for capital.  So we would not have that information.

MR. SHEPHERD:  You have figures or your payroll savings for capital.

Okay.  I will circle back to it then.  I think we will get to the figure.

My next question then is on AMPCO 6.  These are all in confidential documents, and what I would like you to do -- and I don't want you to do it orally unless it is not confidential -- is provide an explanation as to the amount of reduction of executive management and management FTEs in table 3.

So why is it these levels of reduction and not more or less in both executive management and management.  I understand the non-union and union numbers, but the top two I don't understand.

So if you can do that orally on the record without it being confidential, that's great.  If you can't, then perhaps you could provide a confidential undertaking.

[Witness panel confers]

MS. SCHACHT:  We have provided for, in the business case, savings related to the merger that are tied to payroll and FTE reductions, and the numbers are basically representative of what we believe our operating requirements are.  But I don't think at this point the specific FTEs and specific areas is really relevant.

I think at the end of the day, the important information is the overall savings related to payroll costs.

MR. SHEPHERD:  I am not asking about the savings; I’ve read the savings.  I am asking about the rationale for keeping the particular number of executive and management people you are proposing to keep, as opposed to some different number.

Economies of scale would suggest that a different number might be sensible, and I am asking you to -- you have obviously done an analysis.  So I am asking you to file the analysis you have done to get to these numbers.

[Witness panel confers]

MS. SCHACHT:  What I can offer at this point, Mr. Shepherd, is that based on some -- it is really a business decision of how we feel we need to organize the company to meet our requirements for Mergeco, and this is the information that we've put forward.

MR. SHEPHERD:  That is not really helpful.  I am asking you to give me an undertaking to provide the rationale.  You can either give the undertaking, or you can refuse.

MS. SCHACHT:  We will provide an undertaking.

MS. HELT:  That will be undertaking JTCX1.5 and just to make sure I have it clear it is to provide an explanation or rationale for the number of executive management and non-management FTEs?

MR. SHEPHERD:  No, no, executive management and management.

MS. HELT:  And management sorry, FTEs.  Thank you.

UNDERTAKING NO. JTCX1.5:  TO PROVIDE AN EXPLANATION OR RATIONALE FOR THE NUMBER OF EXECUTIVE MANAGEMENT AND MANAGEMENT


MR. CASS:  And, Maureen, the X designation is the confidentiality part?

MS. HELT:  Yes.

MR. CASS:  Yes, thank you.

MR. SHEPHERD:  My next question is on BOMA 8, and there's confidential information in the response to (f).

I wonder if you can just tell us which of those categories of people -- you have a certain number of people that you are going to locate at the sustainable and innovation office.

Can you tell us which of those people are utility personnel and which are not?  Are they by category, or are they in each one some utility and some not utility?

MS. SCHACHT:  The numbers in BOMA 8 are all utility people.

MR. SHEPHERD:  So then help me understand this.  The first category here is obviously not a utility activity.  That's -- the ratepayers don't pay for that.

[Witness panel confers]

MR. MACDONALD:  Mr. Shepherd, you are correct in that that function is funded by the IESO.

MR. SHEPHERD:  Yes.

MR. MACDONALD:  But it is a licensed activity of the distributor.

MR. SHEPHERD:  Let me rephrase it, then.  Can you break down these people into the ones that the ratepayers are paying for and the ones the ratepayers are not paying for?  Just give us a table.

MR. MACDONALD:  Looking at the list in front of me in this response, we have just talked about conservation demand management.

The other activities looking at this list --


MR. SHEPHERD:  Before you go any further, remember that this is marked as confidential, right?  So I don't know how much of this chart is confidential.  Maybe it is just the numbers, but --


MR. MACDONALD:  I won't read them out.  But I will say that these activities are, in front of me, are -- they're all core distribution functions.

MR. SHEPHERD:  So all of them, except the first one, are paid for by the ratepayers?

MR. MACDONALD:  Correct.

MR. SHEPHERD:  All right.  And then to the extent that there's any -- that they do any work for affiliates, for example, for example solar and stuff like that, that's done in the allocation process?

MR. MACDONALD:  We would have service level agreements, as each of the predecessor utilities does.

MR. SHEPHERD:  Right.  Okay.  I think I am just about done.  Are you the ones to ask questions about the service level agreement with PowerStream Solar?

MR. WOLFF:  You can ask the question, but if it's not something I am specifically familiar with, I would have to defer to the other panel, but maybe you can ask and then I can make the determination.

MR. SHEPHERD:  All right.  So you don't have a service level agreement yet, right?

MR. WOLFF:  Not a final one, no.

MR. SHEPHERD:  It is being negotiated right now as we speak.

MR. WOLFF:  Correct.

MR. SHEPHERD:  Well, not as we speak, because everybody is here, but...

But do I understand that you don't have a number yet?  You don't have any dollar figures to tell the Board about how much the LDC Co. is going to be paid for the services it provides?

MR. WOLFF:  I don't believe so.  And I don't think that we've put any numbers together at this point.

MR. SHEPHERD:  Do you know when those will be available?

MR. WOLFF:  Not off the top of my head.

MR. SHEPHERD:  Will they be available during this proceeding?

MR. WOLFF:  I suspect not.

MR. SHEPHERD:  Thank you.

I think that is all the questions I have of this panel.

MS. HELT:  Thank you, Mr. Shepherd.  What I would suggest at this time is that we just go off air for a couple of minutes, switch back to panel 1.

Mr. Aiken, how long do you think you will be with panel 1?

MR. AIKEN:  I don't think I will be very long.  Mr. Shepherd has covered a lot of my questions.  I might be 15 minutes.

MS. HELT:  And then Board Staff can proceed with our questions.  And that might take us to about 12:30, which might be a good time to take a lunch break, unless Mr. Garner, do you have any questions?

MR. SHEPHERD:  I do have some more questions of panel 1, though.

MS. HELT:  You do?

MR. SHEPHERD:  Yes.

MS. HELT:  Oh.  All right.  I was not aware of that.  How long will you be?

MR. SHEPHERD:  15 minutes.

MS. HELT:  So we will try to get Mr. Aiken and Mr. Shepherd and Board Staff done with panel 1 before lunch.

I am hoping that we can perhaps finish this technical conference today.  So we will just see how we progress.  So we will just go off air for a couple of minutes.
LDC CO. - PANEL 1, Resumed

John Glicksman
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MS. HELT:  All right.  So we now have panel 1 present again.  Mr. Aiken, are you ready to proceed?

MR. SHEPHERD:  I thought I was...

MS. HELT:  Oh, Mr. Shepherd, okay.  Go ahead, Mr. Shepherd.
Continued Questions by Mr. Shepherd:


MR. SHEPHERD:  I would say my feelings are hurt, but they're not.

So I only have a few questions left.  The first is in the -- Staff 31 has the business plan, the Titan business plan, right?  I am on page 15 of it.  And you have referred to the DSPs of the utilities.  And three have a DSP and one has a long-term capital plan but no approved DSP, right?

MR. BASILIO:  I believe that's correct, yes.

MR. SHEPHERD:  Were those documents in the record in this proceeding?

MR. BASILIO:  Not in this proceeding.

MS. BUTANY-DESOUZA:  No, they're not.

MR. SHEPHERD:  Is there any reason why they couldn't be?  Is there anything about them that would make that inappropriate?

MR. BASILIO:  About --


MR. SHEPHERD:  About the documents --


MR. BASILIO:  -- filing our DSPs?

MR. SHEPHERD:  -- they're not confidential or anything?  They have been on the record in other cases?

MS. BUTANY-DESOUZA:  Yes, they're --


MR. BASILIO:  I suppose we can file all 3,000 pages of our DSPs on this record, yes.

MR. SHEPHERD:  You can file them on a stick, if you want.

MS. BUTANY-DESOUZA:  They're big, but we can file them.

MR. BASILIO:  There is no reason we couldn't file them.  The DSPs that are on the record --


MR. SHEPHERD:  What about the capital plan of the other one?

MS. BUTANY-DESOUZA:  You would have received in another proceeding the Enersource draft DSP.

MR. SHEPHERD:  Yes.

MS. BUTANY-DESOUZA:  So I think it is probably more appropriate given the time passed between the preparation of this business plan document and the preparation of that distribution system plan that we would file those three -- the three DSPs for Horizon, HONBI, and PowerStream, and then the draft DSP for Enersource, as opposed to the long-term plan that is referenced on the page that you provided.

MR. SHEPHERD:  Okay, that's good.

MR. GLICKSMAN:  That would also be the DSP that PowerStream filed as part of its rate proceeding, not any updated version.

MR. SHEPHERD:  No, well, I would like the most current one.  If you have a more current one that would be better.

MS. BUTANY-DESOUZA:  There is only one.

MR. SHEPHERD:  Okay, so that's fine.  I just want to be able to access them in this proceeding rather than having to go to other proceedings.  That's all.

MS. HELT:  Okay.  Undertaking JTC1.6, to provide the DSPs of Horizon, HOBNI, and PowerStream and the draft DSP of Enersource.
UNDERTAKING NO. JTC1.6:  TO PROVIDE THE DSPS OF HORIZON, HOBNI, AND POWERSTREAM AND THE DRAFT DSP OF ENERSOURCE.

MS. BUTANY-DESOUZA:  Sorry, can I confirm that is JTC1.6?

MR. SHEPHERD:  It should be 1.7.

MS. HELT:  No, it is 1.6.

MR. SHEPHERD:  Okay, I didn't -- never mind.

My next question is on page 36 of that same document.  So you have -- you are going to have some redundant call centres and some redundant control rooms -– indeed, redundant space generally because you will cut back a bunch of employees, right?

Do your savings include any benefit from the sale of any property?

MR. BASILIO:  No.

MR. SHEPHERD:  So if you have a building that you don't need any more, what are you going to do with it?

MR. BASILIO:  We haven't determined whether there is a building we don't need any more.

MR. SHEPHERD:  So from may be additional savings or additional benefits from being able to sell those buildings?

MR. BASILIO:  Hypothetically, if we determine that there was a building somewhere that we no longer require, yes, there would be additional savings that are contem --

MR. SHEPHERD:  Well, you are going to reduce your staff by -- I don't remember what the number is, 12 or 14 percent, something like that.  I am not saying any specific numbers, but -- and so presumably you need that much less space.

MR. BASILIO:  Yes, it depends on -- as you know, if you are going to reduce by a building, there is a certain discrete number of employees you would have to reduce it by, or vacate it.

And so that analysis hasn't been undertaken.  What we're talking about here, if you look at -- I mean, I don't know if these numbers are on the record.  They could be confidential.

Sorry, if I could just confer with ...

[Witness panel confers]

So we filed confidentially in AMPCO 8 the approximate number of employee reductions relative to the total number of employees in this business case.

As you can see, the number as a percentage of the total, is not terribly significant.  It certainly wouldn't justify rationalizing the three main offices down to two.

And so I think where I am going with that is, there isn't an obvious discrete reduction of one facility at this point in time as a result of the number of head count that will be reduced in the transaction.

So could there be down the road?  I think that work has to be undertaken.  And, you know, it is in our interest to look for additional synergies.  Certainly we have put in the model so many synergies.  We think -- you know, we think they're achievable.

There is going to be a lot of work.  We would hope for more.  That is of, again, mutual benefit to our customers and to our shareholder.

But, you know, on the building point itself, that hasn't been undertaken and, you know, that's work to be done.

The only additional thing I would add is there's a -- there's a three-year transition period here.  As you can imagine, as we're trying to -- we're trying to relocate employees to where they will be.  We are going to need swing space and a lot of it.

You can only imagine that the logistics of trying to move employees over the next three years and facilitate the transition is going to be a lot of work.

And so, you know, while there might be little discrete parts of buildings that are ultimately not as utilized as they are today, we're going to have bulges in each of those facilities through the transition period, and likely a little bit beyond that.

MR. SHEPHERD:  I wasn't actually trying to second-guess your process, your transition process.  I mean, PowerStream has done this before.  You have done this before.

MR. BASILIO:  Yes.

MR. SHEPHERD:  This isn't your first rodeo, right?

MR. BASILIO:  Right.

MR. SHEPHERD:  But I am asking a more technical question.  Do the numbers that are before the Board right now, the savings numbers, the benefit numbers, do they include -- and I take it your answer is no -- any reductions in space or premises requirements as a result of the synergies?

MR. BASILIO:  There is no facility disposition in those numbers, if that is what you're --


MR. SHEPHERD:  And there is no reduction in the cost of facilities?

MR. BASILIO:  Not that I am aware of, no.  I don't believe so.  There's nothing with respect to space.

There could be, for example, I believe in -- look at projecting capital, some of the capital synergies going forward.  Obviously, as you have less employees, you have less computers required.  I mean, there could be equipment, those sorts of things.

Certainly in the synergies redundant capital, future avoided capital was considered.  So those elements would have been considered.

MR. SHEPHERD:  But the costs of existing capital -- for example, all of your buildings -- has not been adjusted?

MR. BASILIO:  No.  So air-conditioning costs, those sort of things, no.  Operating buildings, lighting, those sort of things, you have to --


MR. SHEPHERD:  Depreciation, return on equity, all of those things, not changed?

MR. BASILIO:  Depreciation, no.

MR. SHEPHERD:  Okay.  Next is on page 46 of that same document, you have indicated that PowerStream shareholders have put in an additional $50 million for your capital program.

I assume that that is actually reduced dividends, is that right?

MR. GLICKSMAN:  No.  The plan was to put in 50.  I think the last 15 was due in 2016 and will not be -- assuming this merger goes through, will not be made.  Instead there will be a capital injection to support the merger and purchase.  And those were not reduced dividends.  Those were actually capital injection.

MR. SHEPHERD:  Okay, thank you.  Then my next question is on page 69 of the operational plan, and we talked about this earlier a bit and I’ve now found the reference that I’d said I had seen.

At the bottom of that page, you talk about how you are going to determine who works where.  The first two items are the benefits to local communities.  I am not sure I understand how that works.

MR. BASILIO:  Well, these are principles.  And I think they're things that are largely logical that we would be trying to achieve.  All communities share the benefits and the reductions.

As we talk about ratepayer benefits, I think you have seen in the evidence that the plan is -- certainly beyond once we rebase, is that those savings will be shared equitably among the communities.

And so this, to some extent, is a bit of motherhood and things that, on a principles basis, you would like to achieve, that each community benefits and shares -- you know, shares the reductions to the extent possible rateably.

MR. SHEPHERD:  You know what I’m driving at here, what I am trying to understand, because -- and again, I will use PowerStream, and I guess Horizon does the same thing.  You can operate a utility on the basis of operational needs, or you can consider a bunch of other things like which community got the last spend.

I take it that you're saying that that latter part is not really part of the equation in your operational decisions?

[Witness panel confers]

MR. BASILIO:  So we have given an undertaking on commitments, and I think the scope of that was largely those things that we have contractually committed to, in terms of what the communities will get.

These that you are referring to here, I think, are largely more principles basis.

MR. SHEPHERD:  No.  My question was, when you make operational decisions about the utility, do you take into account the impact on each of the communities you serve relative to the other communities you serve, and whether they're each getting a fair, positive impact from your activities.

MR. BASILIO:  I think the answer to that is yes.

MR. SHEPHERD:  Okay.  I have no more questions.  Thank you.

MS. HELT:  Thank you, Mr. Shepherd.  Mr. Aiken?
Questions by Mr. Aiken:


MR. AIKEN:  Thank you and good afternoon, panel.

MS. BUTANY-DESOUZA:  Good afternoon.

MR. AIKEN:  Jay tends to take up the whole morning, so...

[Laughter]

I just have a few questions.  My first one is on exhibit B, tab 6, schedule 1, and it is figure 25, the total net synergies.  Yes.  Exhibit B, tab 6, Schedule 1.  It is on page 2.  Figure 25.

MR. BASILIO:  We have it.

MR. AIKEN:  Okay.  Am I correct that none of these numbers change as a result of the PowerStream decision?

MR. BASILIO:  Not significantly.

MR. AIKEN:  Okay.  A couple of pages later we have figure 26.  This is the distribution revenue trends.

And I know you are not updating your evidence for the PowerStream decision, but directionally what happens with the status quo and the merged bars?

MR. BASILIO:  Well, I guess on the basis that the synergies are not changing substantively, the delta between the two bars would not change substantively either.

MR. AIKEN:  Would it be correct that the status quo blue bars would be slightly less distribution revenue?

MR. BASILIO:  Correct.  But the merged would be as well, then.

MR. AIKEN:  Yes, okay, thank you.

In the response to B-Energy Probe-12, part (b) of the question, I had asked, will the incremental consolidation costs be included or excluded in the RRR filing data used to calculate efficiency cohorts in the future?  The response is that the applicants will file RRR data in accordance with OEB policy.

My question is, what is your understanding of the OEB policy?

MS. BUTANY-DESOUZA:  I think this room was built for people taller than me.

I think similar to the response that I offered on maintaining Horizon Utilities' settlement agreement and reporting, we know that we need to be compliant with RRR reporting.

We are maintaining separate rate zones.  We haven't finalized yet -- we haven't come to a final determination on how the RRR reporting is going to flow out from that, but certainly, given the parameters under which we need to be able to report for Horizon Utilities in the context of the settlement agreement, likely for the first few years that RRR data will naturally flow -- may naturally flow separate -- on a rate zone basis as well.

I can see a time when, particularly as systems converge and we have aggregate -- a full aggregation of the four utilities into one, that then the RRR data may be filed only on a consolidated basis, but I don't want to presuppose at this juncture sitting here in August 2016 what that RRR reporting might look like at the end of that integration exercise, which, as we know and have filed in evidence, is likely at least three years into the future.

So I guess the shorter answer is, we expect to be compliant on the how we're going to get there.  That's still in development.

MR. AIKEN:  That really wasn't the question, though.

MS. BUTANY-DESOUZA:  Okay.

MR. AIKEN:  My question had to do with the incremental consolidation costs, the 97 million.

MS. BUTANY-DESOUZA:  Yeah.

MR. AIKEN:  Are those costs going to show up in the RRR data?  In other words, are they going to make you look less efficient?

MS. BUTANY-DESOUZA:  So we responded to this in the context of ROE reporting, and so this would be outside of the computation of the ROE.

MR. AIKEN:  Okay.  That's what I was looking for, thanks.

MS. BUTANY-DESOUZA:  Yes, and I can't quickly get my hands on the ROE, but...

MR. AIKEN:  My next question is on a combination of the response to B-AMPCO-9 and to technical conference AMPCO 1.  Maybe if we go to the second one first.

On the second page we have Table 1 at the top.  And a couple of questions here.  First, can you break out these numbers by year?  For each of 2016 through 2020?

MR. GLICKSMAN:  Yes, we can.

MR. AIKEN:  Would you undertake to do that?

MR. GLICKSMAN:  Yes.

MR. AIKEN:  Okay.

MS. HELT:  Was that a yes?  I'm sorry, I --


MR. GLICKSMAN:  Yes.

MS. HELT:  Yes?  JTC1.7, to provide a year-by-year breakdown of the numbers shown in Table 1 of AMPCO technical conference question 1.
UNDERTAKING NO. JTC1.7:  TO PROVIDE A YEAR-BY-YEAR BREAKDOWN OF THE NUMBERS SHOWN IN TABLE 1 OF AMPCO TECHNICAL CONFERENCE QUESTION 1.

MR. AIKEN:  Then my second question is, on the footnote it says "assumes a 1.8 percent price cap with no ICM in 2018, '19, and '20".  And if you go back to the response to B-AMPCO-9 in part (d) it says "the ICM assumptions are", and it shows average customer growth factors for each of the four utilities.  And then for price cap indexes it says "PowerStream and Horizon Utilities, 1.3 percent".

What am I missing here in these differences?

MR. GLICKSMAN:  So that's model assumption, which also assume that we will be on a custom IR for the period 2016 to 2020 at the time the model was prepared.

MR. AIKEN:  So then in your model for PowerStream you have used a price cap of 1.3 percent beyond the five years.

MR. GLICKSMAN:  Correct.

MR. AIKEN:  Whereas in Table 1 you have used 1.8 percent starting in 2018; is that correct?

MR. GLICKSMAN:  Yes, correct.

MR. AIKEN:  Okay.  My next question is on Staff 30.  Staff had asked you in part (a) to provide the current estimate of the total incremental capital to be sought via ICM until rebasing.  And the response is 414 million.

Now, what -- in terms of a ballpark figure, given the PowerStream decision, was that likely to go up 1 percent or 10 percent or...

Do you have a rough estimate for the additional three years of the PowerStream potential for an ICM?

[Witness panel confers]

MR. GLICKSMAN:  We can take an undertaking to give an approximate calculation, but it is very small.

MR. AIKEN:  Okay.  And --


MR. GLICKSMAN:  And part of it is also dependent on the analysis our engineering people are doing in terms of what capital reductions they will do over that period, what will be the -- how will they amend the capital plan that has been built into the business plan.

MR. AIKEN:  Before we assign that an undertaking number, the second part of the question I had was -- and maybe this is in the evidence someplace and I haven't seen it, or in the IR responses.

But can you break out that total, the 414 million or whatever the new number is, can you break that out by year and by utility, as to what makes up that total?

[Witness panel confers]

MR. GLICKSMAN:  We're just checking, but -- Indy is checking, and I think we've already filed the breakdown of that 414 by year.

MR. AIKEN:  I know there is an answer that breaks it down by year, but I didn't see a breakdown by the four utilities by year.

MS. BUTANY-DESOUZA:  Sorry.  If I could refer you to CCC 18, I think you can see it on -- and unfortunately it is not page-numbered, but if you go to CCC 18 you get to total incremental capital, and you will see it broken down by year and by party.  Schools 18.

MS. YAMPOLSKY:  Schools 18.

MR. AIKEN:  Okay, Schools 18.

MS. BUTANY-DESOUZA:  Schools 18.  Sorry, Ms. De Julio, but it's about five pages in -- there it is up on the screen, top of the screen.

MR. AIKEN:  Okay, thank you.  So I will just take the undertaking then for the first question.

MS. HELT:  Mr. Aiken, can you just repeat what that first part of the undertaking was, and it will be assigned JTC1.8.  But for the record, if you could state it again, please.

MR. AIKEN:  Basically to update the response to part (a) of Staff 30, to take into account the PowerStream decision.
UNDERTAKING NO. JTC1.8:  WITH REFERENCE TO B-STAFF-30, TO TAKE INTO ACCOUNT THE POWERSTREAM DECISION


MS. HELT:  Thank you.

MR. AIKEN:  And then my last question is on the response to CCC number 22, and it is part (b), table 1.

My question here is:  Can you add two lines to this table, the first that shows the return on equity based on your business plan in dollars, and the second would be your return on equity in percentage from your business plan that you are projecting?

[Witness panel confers]

MS. BUTANY-DESOUZA:  Yes, we can undertake to provide that.

MR. AIKEN:  Okay.

MS. HELT:  That will be undertaking JTC1.9.
UNDERTAKING NO. JTC1.9:  TO ADD TWO LINES TO TABLE 1 OF OUR RESPONSE TO CCC 22, THE RETURN ON EQUITY IN DOLLARS AND THE RETURN ON EQUITY IN PERCENTAGE TERMS.

MR. AIKEN:  Thank you.  Those are my questions.

MS. HELT:  Thank you.

MS. BUTANY-DESOUZA:  Sorry, Ms. Helt, do you mind repeating the undertaking, then?  So JTC1.9 is to add two lines to table 1 of our response to CCC --


MS. HELT:  22.

MS. BUTANY-DESOUZA:  22, and those two lines, Mr. Aiken, are?

MR. AIKEN:  They are the return on equity in dollars and the return on equity in percentage terms.

MS. BUTANY-DESOUZA:  Thank you.

MS. HELT:  All right.  Thank you, Mr. Aiken.  We will now turn to Board Staff's questions.  Miss Kwan will go first.
Questions by Ms. Kwan:


MS. KWAN:  Hi, I am Donna Kwan with Board Staff, and I have a few questions.  The first one is Staff 15.  So that’s regarding the DVA balances, and you have indicated that DVA balances which arise after the day of closing the last of the proposed transactions will be tracked separately.  You haven't decided whether it will be tracked separately, or on a consolidated basis.

But will you have the capability to track separately, if that is needed?

MS. BUTANY-DESOUZA:  So, yes, our expectation is that we will be able to track separately.

Further to the comments that I have offered in respect of other related tracking or reporting-related questions, you might appreciate that the response here is more vague simply because we haven't figured it out yet on exactly how that is going to happen, but we expect to be able to.

MS. KWAN:  Okay.  And my next question is on Staff 18.

MR. BRETT:  Excuse me, can you speak into the mic a bit more?  I am having trouble picking you up.

MS. KWAN:  For Staff 18, it refers to the attachment and on page 6 of the attachment, the consolidated entity included in net income from HOBNI --


MS. BUTANY-DESOUZA:  Give us a minute.  Sorry, can you give us a minute to turn it up, please?

MS. KWAN:  Sure.

MS. BUTANY-DESOUZA:  Thank you.  Miss Kwan, did you say page 6 of the attachment?

MS. KWAN:  Yes.  It says the consolidated entity included net income from HOBNI, whereas the stand-alone scenario did not include HOBNI.

So by the stand-alone scenario, do you mean the blue bars in the graph?

MR. BASILIO:  Correct.  That's correct.

MS. KWAN:  Okay.  So is this the case for all of the graphs in the attachment with the blue bars?

MR. BASILIO:  No.  It would just be the income and dividend trends.  The customer trends would include the four utilities, so distribution revenue, distribution revenue per customer.

MS. KWAN:  Okay.  So why just those charts, then?

MR. BASILIO:  Sorry?  Why?

MS. KWAN:  Why do the net income one only include the three instead of the four utilities?

MR. BASILIO:  The status quo only -- the status quo net income only includes the three utilities because Hydro One Brampton is not a shareholder, following the merger.

So the three utilities are acquiring Hydro One Brampton.

MS. KWAN:  Yes.

MR. BASILIO:  So they're paying a price and they're earning income.

So the three utilities now don't have access -- you know, if we combine the three utilities now, we don't have access to Brampton income.  We just have our own income.

Once we make an outlay and acquire Brampton, then the three utilities will be sharing Brampton net income on a pro rata basis.  That's why it is appropriate to show the status quo based on the earnings of the three.

If it was an amalgamation, if it was a merger of the four, then it would be appropriate to show status quo, the four combined income before and after.  But it is just a -- we're acquiring Brampton.

MS. KWAN:  Okay.  But is it possible to provide a graph with the four?

MR. BASILIO:  If I could ask for what purpose?  It would be very difficult to do so.

MS. KWAN:  Just for comparison purposes, because I feel like it is not really a direct comparison when you are comparing four utilities in one scenario and three utilities in another scenario.

MR. BASILIO:  It is a direct comparison, because from a shareholder perspective, the shareholders of the merging entities before the merger are getting dividends based on the three utilities separately.

And then post-merger, that shareholder group is getting income from four entities pro rata thereafter.

So it is an appropriate comparison from a shareholder perspective.  This is exactly what they would want to see.  That is the purpose of the chart, is to show shareholders what the before and after situation is, in terms of the income and dividends that accrues to them.

The Brampton shareholder is not part of that equation, before or after.

MS. KWAN:  Okay.  Moving on to Staff 18, I think the response refers to AMPCO 21 as well.  And in that response, it is stated that the 100 percent scenario is the maximum savings available in the consolidated utility.

MS. BUTANY-DESOUZA:  Yes, we have the AMPCO response.

MS. KWAN:  So can you clarify what is meant by maximum savings, and whether it incorporates some elements of conservatism in it?

MR. BASILIO:  So we annualized -- 100 percent isn't necessarily the maximum savings.  It's the -– you know, it's the savings that we thought were achievable based on all of the work that's been done by the four organizations.

And then what we did, and I think you have seen this in the evidence, is that we analyzed -- well, using what's achievable as a benchmark, being the 100 percent, what if we only get 75 percent?  What if we only get 50 percent?  To do a bit of a stress test on both the benefits to shareholders and the benefits to customers really for purposes of seeing, you know, where does the transaction make sense or not make sense.

So we did not analyze above 100 percent.  Are there elements of conservatism in the forecast?  You know, perhaps.  I think really what we were trying to do here is to comfortably come up with a number that was achievable.

So the last thing we want to do, from a shareholder or a customer perspective, is to over-promise and under-deliver.  So this is what the group felt very comfortable with taking forward.

Could savings be more than 100 percent?  You know, possibly.  But we don't have any evidence at this point to suggest that they will be.  It's an estimate.

MS. KWAN:  Okay.  And my next question is on Staff 21.  So part (c) says that the debt capacity available through the anticipated growth in rate base will provide cash flows sufficient to satisfy the debt requirements.

Does this mean that you intend to take on more debt to pay off the acquisition facility and the associated interest when they're due?

MR. BASILIO:  Well, yes.  We will have to refinance the acquisition facility.  So, you know, we're paying 600 million -- you know, the purchase price is $607 million, plus or minus purchase price adjustments.  We'll fund that principally through the credit facility, with some contribution that we have provided in the business case.  There is some equity contribution from PowerStream and Enersource to that value.

And then the prudent thing to do shortly after using the facility -- because the facility is a floating -- I mean, the facility is debt.  So the prudent thing that we will do, because it is floating rate debt effectively, will be to refinance it with long-term debentures shortly after -- shortly after the transaction, you know, fix the rates for the long-term.

MS. KWAN:  Okay.  And then part (e) says that:

"All short-term debt facilities of each of the applicants will be extinguished and funded through the 500 million working capital facility."

Then part (a) says that:

"The 500 million facility was determined to be appropriate by reviewing current short-term debt requirements and IESO credentials."

So just going back to the application in Exhibit B, tab 6, Schedule 6, page 7...

MR. BASILIO:  If you would just give us a second.

MS. BUTANY-DESOUZA:  Page?

MS. KWAN:  Seven.

MS. BUTANY-DESOUZA:  Seven.  Thank you.

MR. BASILIO:  Yes.

MS. KWAN:  So it says that HOBNI has a 50 million credit facility, and then on page 8 it says there's another 50 million credit facility from RBC.

Are these two facilities the same one or are they two separate ones?

[Witness panel confers]

MR. BASILIO:  Sorry, you are asking if the $50 million HOBNI facility on line 14 of page 7 is the same as the facility on page 8, line 2, and, yes, I believe it is.  I believe there is just an expansion of -- that's just a -- I believe that is just a further description of the $50 million facility on the prior page.

MS. KWAN:  Okay.  So if I add the short-term credit facilities for the four utilities in Schedule 6 it comes up to 525 million.  Your working capital facility is 500 million.  So why do you believe that 500 million would be sufficient?

MR. BASILIO:  Well, there is also a $25 million swing facility in that arrangement.  But why would 500 be sufficient?  Firstly, you know, it's about balancing, I think, availability with cost.

And so, you know, what I would say generally speaking for utilities is the cost of credit facilities is relatively cheap.  We're highly rated entities.  There is a great attraction to invest and make available capital to this sector.

And so because credit is so cheap, and as a matter of prudency, you know, we tend to have contingency in our credit lines, in each of the four separate utilities.

And so by bringing them together there probably is somewhat of a synergy in bringing them together.  Meaning that, you know, you wouldn't want -- you wouldn't want your utilization to peak beyond a certain point.

So for example, Horizon has a hundred million dollar credit facility that is presently peaking here in the summer months at about $55 million.  So there is still a fair bit amount of room, but you never know.

I mean, global adjustment swings quite a bit, we see over the year, and seems to be on an upward trend.  So we have some contingency, and that is a matter of prudency, because you never want to run out of liquidity.  Each of us operate to some extent in that fashion.

So when you bring them together collectively, you know, there is some room that you can take out.  As you have seen, it's $25 million.  It is really not that much.  So, you know, we're not terribly concerned about it.

What I would say is that if we were concerned about it, and we had to add, let's say 50- or $100 million, we don't see that as being an issue whatsoever.  That is largely a matter of picking up the phone and coming to some sort of arrangement with the bank for an additional amount.

But in short, we feel the $500 million at this time is quite adequate for the working capital requirements and to some extent bridging capital expenditure, you know, for a period of time.

MS. KWAN:  Okay.  So I guess out of the 500 million you don't think you will reach the max of that when you're --


MR. BASILIO:  We would never want to reach the maximum of that.  And in fact, prior to reaching the maximum of that, we would probably issue a debenture to relieve the credit facility, which is the typical practice of utilities.  We've got facilities.  We use them for two purposes.  Working capital, timing differences between receivables and payables, and financing small amounts of cap ex to a point where it is cost-effective to take out the -- to take out a permanent draw on the facility with a long-term debenture.

So then to relieve the facility with an issuance of, in the case of Mergeco, probably 100 or 200 million dollar debenture.  We would never let it get anywhere close to the 500 million.

MS. KWAN:  Okay.  My next question is on Staff 27.  So part (b) says that HHI has a debt capacity of 100.6 million, which will be used to fund the transaction, but HHI is only required to contribute 93.4 million based on proportionate shareholder -- shareholding allocated to the shareholders.  So the difference of the 7.2 million represents a closing credit to account of HHI shareholders.

So it appears that you have chosen to increase that and reduce equity for HHI.  Can you please explain what the impact to ratepayers would be in a future rate application because of this.


MR. BASILIO:  There would be no impact, because the capital structure for utilities is deemed by the Energy Board.

MS. KWAN:  Okay.  And my last question is on Staff 31.  So in part (a)(ii), a draft accounting order was requested, and the response to that was that -- that case, we'll look to existing policies such as the Board's RRR 2.1.56 ROE complete filing guide to inform the mechanics and the journal ledger entries.

So would you be willing to provide the draft accounting order?

MS. BUTANY-DESOUZA:  This goes back to the items that we have identified are still in development.  We recognize that we need to make these -- to provide the reporting, but we're -- at this time we don't have that -- we haven't developed that.  We expect that we will do it in compliance with OEB policies in those applications.

MS. KWAN:  Okay.  But in terms of the mechanics of the account, then, how would you expect the account to work?

MS. BUTANY-DESOUZA:  And by "account" do you mean the ESM?

MS. KWAN:  Yes.

MS. BUTANY-DESOUZA:  Sorry, was that a yes?

MS. KWAN:  Yes.

MS. BUTANY-DESOUZA:  Okay.  For ESM purposes, I think it is similar to that which we established in Horizon Utilities settlement agreement.

MS. KWAN:  Okay.

MS. BUTANY-DESOUZA:  We modelled this on the same.  The only difference between the ESM that we have proposed in this MAADs applications versus the Horizon Utilities ESM is that the one in this MAADs application has a dead band and is in years six to ten.

MS. KWAN:  Okay.  So I guess you are asking for the establishment of the deferral account, right?

MS. BUTANY-DESOUZA:  We will need it, yes, in years six to ten.

MS. KWAN:  So I guess at the end of this proceeding, would you be ready to provide a draft accounting order, then?

MS. BUTANY-DESOUZA:  I think that that could be provided in a future rate application.

MS. KWAN:  Okay.

MS. BUTANY-DESOUZA:  We expect this Board Panel will adjudicate this application and agree -- hopefully agree to the proposal on the ESM structure that we have proposed in the application.

The actual ESM is a matter that is rates-related and would come to fruition in a future rates application, and we would make that filing at that time and we would provide the draft accounting order during that application, not in this one.

MS. KWAN:  But usually a draft accounting order is -- accompanies the creation of the account, though.  And the prudence is reviewed in the future application when it is disposed of.

MS. BUTANY-DESOUZA:  Right.  But we don't need the deferral acc -- we don’t need the account to be established in year one.

MS. KWAN:  But you are requesting for the account to be established right now, right?

MS. BUTANY-DESOUZA:  We are suggesting in the MAADs application that we anticipate that in years six to ten, that there will be an ESM in place.

MS. KWAN:  Okay.  So are you asking for an account now, or in year six?

MS. BUTANY-DESOUZA:  I think I have answered the question.

MR. BASILIO:  I think we would be looking for it in year six, when it is effective -- or perhaps year five for year six, or something.

MS. BUTANY-DESOUZA:  There will be nothing to track into it in the first five years.

MS. KWAN:  Yes, I understand that.  Okay, I think that is all of my questions.

MS. HELT:  Thank you, Ms. Kwan.  Mr. Davies?
Questions by Mr. Davies:

MR. DAVIES:  Good afternoon, panel.  My first question relates to B-Staff-9.

It relates to part (c) of this question, which was:
“Please state how the merged entity will ensure that these costs will not be included in the ratepayer-funded LDC co-revenue requirement.”

The response that was provided was that:
“The applicants confirm that transition costs will not be included in the rate-base calculation on the rebasing of the consolidated entity and will be tracked separately.”

Can you explain how that would be done, or provide any information on the approach you are going to use to ensure that that takes place?

MR. BASILIO:  So to the extent that the costs are OM&A -- of the $97.3 million, a portion are operating costs, a portion are capital costs.

To the extent they're OM&A, we expect the transition to be a three, three-and-a-half-year period.  So there would never be any -- there would never be any transition costs OM&A in rate base by year ten of the transaction.

With respect to capital, we would track it -- we can track it separately in a fixed asset sub-ledger.  We could track it as transition costs capital, so that it is separately identifiable in a fixed asset sub-ledger.

And that way, we could make sure it is separately identifiable when we bring our accounts forward for rebasing in year ten.

And similarly, if we're applying for ICM in a year, we would be able to separately identify the capital, capital costs.

MR. DAVIES:  Thank you.  My second question relates to B-Staff-10, but I think that it would be more useful if you can turn to Exhibit B, tab 6, schedule 2, page 2, which that interrogatory related to.

MR. BASILIO:  We have it.

MR. DAVIES:  In part (a) of this interrogatory, you were asked for a breakdown of the anticipated capex savings shown in figure 27, equivalent to what is provided for the OPEX savings in figure 28.

The response that was given was:
“The applicants did not determine the capital synergy savings by payroll costs versus non-payroll categories.”

My question is, recognizing that you didn't do that, can you provide any equivalent capex savings breakdown to what you did in figure 28 for the opex?

[Witness panel confers]

MS. BUTANY-DESOUZA:  Mr. Davies, and maybe Ms. Helt can help me with this, but I thought that panel 2 undertook to provide something similar in response to a question posed by Mr. Shepherd.

MS. HELT:  If you can just give me a moment here?  There was something similar.  I am not sure if it was the exact same.

I do recall Mr. Shepherd did ask questions with respect to this.

MS. BUTANY-DESOUZA:  Oh, sorry, I am being reminded now by my colleague that I think where we landed was that we don't have that breakdown.

MS. HELT:  Correct.  I believe that is the evidence that you provided in response to Mr. Shepherd.

MS. BUTANY-DESOUZA:  Yes, correct.

MR. DAVIES:  Thank you.  Then the next question also relates to the second part of that interrogatory response.  And that question was:
“Please provide an equivalent version of figure 27 with total savings shown on an accounting accrual basis.”

The response that you provided was that:
"The applicants do not anticipate significant differences between cash and accounting accrual basis."

Could you explain why you wouldn't anticipate any differences between cash and accrual accounting basis?

MR. BASILIO:  Well, with respect to -- I am going to try to answer that question.

With respect to operating expense savings and costs, they're generally period costs.  And so, you know, the cash outlay -- I guess our assumption is the cash outlays for those costs will be in the same period as the corresponding services are incurred with respect to operating expenses, operating transition costs and savings.

And I think that is our -- a similar assumption with respect to capex.  Now, it is possible that you might have work-in-process instead of fixed assets that might carry forward into another period, but it is a fairly short transition.

And so it is difficult for us to estimate whether -- I think that would be the principal difference, where there was something between fixed assets and work-in-process.

But, you know, I think for purposes of this schedule, we tend -- we don't report in this manner to the Board.  But generally speaking, when we prepare our own financial statements, WIP ends up being a component of fixed assets.  So really that reclassification doesn't matter for financial reporting purposes.  It would matter for RRR purposes.

And the only thing I would add is at this time, I don't know that we really have a means of estimating whether there might be any small sort of WIP carryover from one period to another.

MR. DAVIES:  So would it be the conclusion, then, that what you are forecasting is relatively short term capital projects?

MR. BASILIO:  I mean, I would say that's right in, sort of installments.  So, you know, for example, with respect to CIS, that is a project that will continue over an extended period, three years.  However, there will be milestones in between, Brampton converting to the PowerStream system, Enersource converting to the PowerStream system, and then Horizon.

So again, we wouldn't hold that whole balance in WIP until the end of the three-year period because, you know, some of that is actually into service, it's operating.

I guess I am trying to find a -- thinking out -- I apologize.  I am thinking out loud here a little bit, but I am having difficulty seeing a significant difference between cash and accrual accounting for either the operating or capital portions of what's in the table.  And I think we would have a difficult time at this point trying to figure out exactly what those might be.  But I don't think they would be significant, if anything at all.

MR. DAVIES:  Thank you.

My next question concerns B-Staff-22(b), and...  Do you...

MS. BUTANY-DESOUZA:  Yes, we have it.

MR. DAVIES:  And this is really just a clarification question, but the question asks for the impact of the rate-setting assumptions that were assumed in the status quo versus the merged scenarios on the identified expected NPV increase of approximately $276 million.

And the response that was provided is that the difference accounts for approximately 98 million of the expected NPV.

Could you clarify whether that is 98 million plus?  Or 98 million minus?  And why that would be?

[Witness panel confers]

MR. BASILIO:  I apologize for the delay.  As you might expect, among the four utilities we split up the IRs, and so we're just jogging memories back here.

[Witness panel confers]

MS. BUTANY-DESOUZA:  Regrettably, can we take an undertaking to provide a response?

MR. DAVIES:  That's fine.

MS. BUTANY-DESOUZA:  Thank you.

MS. HELT:  All right.  Undertaking JTC1.10 will be with respect to Board Staff 22(b), the response, where it states that "the difference in rate-setting assumptions, or between the merged scenario and the status quo scenario, accounts for approximately 98 million of the identified expected NPV", to provide the -- the undertaking is to provide an explanation if that is a plus 98 or a minus 98, and to provide a rationale for that.
UNDERTAKING NO. JTC1.10:  WITH RESPECT TO BOARD STAFF 22(B), THE RESPONSE, WHERE IT STATES THAT "THE DIFFERENCE IN RATE-SETTING ASSUMPTIONS, OR BETWEEN THE MERGED SCENARIO AND THE STATUS QUO SCENARIO, ACCOUNTS FOR APPROXIMATELY 98-MILLION OF THE IDENTIFIED EXPECTED NPV", TO PROVIDE AN EXPLANATION IF THAT IS A PLUS 98 OR A MINUS 98, AND TO PROVIDE A RATIONALE FOR THAT.

MR. DAVIES:  Thank you.  I just have a couple more questions, and the next one relates to B-Staff-28(a).

MS. BUTANY-DESOUZA:  Yes, we have it.

MR. DAVIES:  Part (a) asked, "please elaborate on the above", which is the assumption for future rate levels in the valuation, "specifically discussing why annual rebasing was assumed from the time of the next rebasing and what impact this assumption had on the valuation as compared to an assumption that rebasing would occur only every five years."

And the thing I just wanted to clarify is, are you assuming after the first ten years that there will literally be annual rebasing each year?

[Witness panel confers]

MR. BASILIO:  The assumption after the ten-year period is that there are successive custom IR applications each five years.

MR. DAVIES:  Okay.  So it will just continue on every five years with custom IR and the other four years will be IRM?

MR. BASILIO:  Correct.

MR. DAVIES:  Thank you.

MR. BASILIO:  Well, it is a five-year application, sorry, but --


MS. BUTANY-DESOUZA:  It's a -- it's a custom -- we're anticipating custom IR applications.  So to the extent that some inflationary impact or index is included in future years beyond year one or depending on how that custom IR that we bring forward in that year 11 and five years after that and five years after that is set up and is approved by the Board, it is our expectation that that is what would carry forward.  But it is not expected that it would be a single cost of service plus four IRM years based on the Board's current construct.  It would be a five-year custom IR.

MR. DAVIES:  Thank you.

MS. BUTANY-DESOUZA:  Thank you.

MR. DAVIES:  The last question I have is on B Staff 31, and it is part (b).  And in part (b) the question was:

"For the example cited above with LDC Co. over-earning in year six post-consolidation, please state how the refunding of the 50 percent balance to ratepayers is envisaged to occur, given the existence of the four rate zones."

And in the response to part (b) you say:

"It is envisaged that any revenue-sharing would be allocated equitably among all customers."

Could you elaborate a bit more on what you mean by "equitably"?

MR. BASILIO:  Well, this is one of those things that I don't think we have entirely figured out at this point, but the thought was similar to sharing the benefits generally, is that all customers would benefit equitably.

So by way of example, if all we had were residential customers -- I know we don't, but if we use that as an example -- and if the ESM balance, when divided through by the number of residential customers, was, let's say, $5 a customer, then all customers would get a $5 benefit.

MR. DAVIES:  That would mean all customers equally across all the rate zones?

MR. BASILIO:  Correct.  Correct.  And that's been the principle, that any outcome attributable to the merger, any customer benefit outcome attributable to the merger, should be shared equitably by all customers.

Obviously this will get a little more complex when you start introducing rate classes and cost allocation and all that good stuff, but, you know, it is really a principled basis that requires further development at this point.

MR. DAVIES:  Thank you very much.  Those are all of my questions.

MS. HELT:  Thank you, Mr. Davies.  I believe Board Staff has a few more questions, only a few.  Mr. Kim?
Questions by Mr. Kim:


MR. KIM:  Good afternoon, panel; Daniel Kim, Board Staff.  I have just two questions.  Hopefully, they're simple enough to answer.

Referring to Staff 8, it is indicated that there's anticipated operating savings to be generated in the following business areas in the first five years -- for example, operations $36.8 million, finance $26.2 million.

Is there any way to reconcile these savings with table 1 from Staff 3?  In table 1, Staff 3, you've got -- sorry, you've got anticipated reductions in operating expenditures by function, by year.

MS. BUTANY-DESOUZA:  The response provided in Staff 8, if you look at the top of page 2 for instance, that's the first five years.  Whereas the table provided in response to Staff 3 is the ten-year period.

MR. KIM:  Right.  So is there a way to reconcile those numbers?

[Witness panel confers]

MS. BUTANY-DESOUZA:  Obviously, that is not a reconciliation we could do on the spot.  So we can undertake to provide it.

MR. KIM:  Okay, great.

MS. HELT:  That will be undertaking JTC1.11, and that is to reconcile the tables found at Board Staff -- in response to Board Staff 8 with the table found at Board Staff 3.

UNDERTAKING NO. JTC1.11:  TO RECONCILE THE TABLES FOUND IN THE RESPONSE TO BOARD STAFF 8 WITH THE TABLE FOUND AT BOARD STAFF 3.

MR. KIM:  Okay.  My last question, or my second question, is in response to Board Staff 16.  So in this table, you will see that the net effective purchase price of HOBNI decreases by December 2016.

But in response to Staff 8(b) --in Staff 8(b), it is indicated here on page 2, under OEB decision timing, a delay would increase the purchase price of HOBNI.

I am just wondering if you could explain how that works.

[Witness panel confers]

MR. BASILIO:  So, if  --


[Witness panel confers]

MS. BUTANY-DESOUZA:  Sorry, it was Staff 8 versus?

MR. KIM:  16.

MS. BUTANY-DESOUZA:  Thank you.

MR. KIM:  Staff.

MR. BASILIO:  Staff 16, we projected the price through to the end of December.

I think in Staff 8, it is more of a generic comment that if this were to be delayed, you know, to March or October of 2017, then the ongoing capital program of Hydro One Brampton will add -- will add to the purchase price adjustment associated with capital.  And so there is a risk of it growing up.

We're also aware there are some significant projects that Brampton is undertaking that are likely going to be energized early in 2017, and so that's going to cause a shift from WIP to fixed assets.

The purchase price adjustment is based on the fixed asset balance exclusive of WIP.

So that is the pressure, that if this moves on beyond the end of the year, that there is a risk of it going up.

And ultimately, it will go up significantly.  I mean, as months go on and they're adding capital, you know, there's a risk, there's pressure on the purchase price going up.

But you are correct.  What you're seeing in those four months that you are referring to is that it is pretty stable between now and the end of the year, what we're projecting.

MR. KIM:  Okay, thank you very much.

MS. HELT:  Thank you, Mr. Kim.  I think now would be a good time to take a lunch break.  And then when we come back, Mr. Brett, you have about 45 minutes to an hour for panel 1, is that correct?

MR. BRETT:  Yes, that's right.

MS. HELT:  All right.  And then Mr. Garner?

MR. GARNER:  Can I go first?

MS. HELT:  You can, yes.  How long do you think you will be?

MR. GARNER:  I really only have one area and one question to put to this panel, and it is in regards to the ICM.

MS. HELT:  Okay.  So then, Mr. Stephenson, would you have any questions?  No questions for panel 1; all right.  Then we will proceed with panel 2 after that.  So I think we're still on track to hopefully complete today.  And we will be all right to take a one-hour lunch break, so let's do that now.  Thank you.
--- Luncheon recess taken at 1:00 p.m.
--- On resuming at 1:59 p.m.

MS. HELT:  Welcome back, everyone, from our lunch break.  We might as well get started.  Mr. Garner has a couple of questions for this witness panel.
Questions by Mr. Garner:


MR. GARNER:  Yes, thank you.

I think the best place to -- well, first of all, let me start by just a word of explanation about one of VECC's IRs.  In 1, VECC 1, I believe it was, we had asked for the contract regarding the smart metering, and I know you had filed -- we saw your filing.  I just wanted you to be aware what you filed as an answer was sufficient for us.

What we were really trying to determine was the relationship of the smart meter provider and whether it was an independent or whether it was a Hydro One.  You provided that, so thank you for that.  And I think if my question had been more succinctly put we probably could have done it without -- but the larger issue.

I want to talk about the ICM.  I am a little bit confused as to a couple of things on it.  But the best way for me to go to it is, in AMPCO 9 you talk about a 130- or $133 million revenue-requirement impact of the ICM, and then later in -- it's in the SEC 18, you talk about a $414 million actual ICM impact.

And I wonder if you could pull up the SEC 18 response, which is on page 35 of 79 of the School's responses.  And I think that is probably the best place to have this whole conversation around, because it has the most information on it.

So if we look at the table that is attached to that document at -- I am on page 35.  I don't think the pages are numbered.  So I am on page 35 of the PDF, and that is now up on the screen.

My first question, using this table, is just a simple math one.  It doesn't matter -- well, let's take Enersource, which is the top line.  And I am trying to decipher what each one of those rows mean.

And let's -- at Enersource 215 we have 55.4, and then underneath we have depreciation of 1.4, and then we have 54.

My first question is simply, when I look at the incremental capital capex for ICM, which is the third row of, in this case, Enersource I am looking at -- I look at that 54 number, what am I looking at?  Am I looking at the subtraction of the depreciation from the recoverable capex in the line above?  It seems to be that way, but it doesn't -- the numbers don't always work out.  In fact, they seldom work out.  They're always off by a little bit.

MS. YAMPOLSKY:  So the answer is essentially yes, but those numbers around it.  So sometimes it simply doesn't work because of the rounding --


MR. GARNER:  Sorry, that's fine.  I thought that might be it.  It is just you did round to one decimal and then not on that, so I just was wondering if that was just the answer, and that's fine, so that's the difference.

Now, the next thing I have -- I am trying to figure out is, if you look at the very bottom of that table, total incremental capital, and then total incremental capital only of ICM revenue, first of all, I am trying to find one of those lines I would have thought equal $414 million, but I can't get either of those rows at the bottom to equal $414 million.

I think one will equal 313.  One will equal 184.  So I am trying to get that 414 number to show up at this table someplace, and have I just read the table wrong or...

MS. YAMPOLSKY:  Well, subject to check, what it is supposed to be, it's supposed to be the total of the total incremental capital.  Not the last one, but one before the last one.  You just need to make sure that you actually take a look at both tables and total it until the very end --


MR. GARNER:  I see.  I take the other -- to the very
-- so I only did it up to 2020, and you're saying if I keep going and just do them all then I will get the number I am looking for?

MS. YAMPOLSKY:  Yes, yes.

MR. GARNER:  Okay.  Thank you.  That's --


MS. YAMPOLSKY:  And the same thing with total incremental revenue, if you keep going to the end --


MR. GARNER:  If I keep going that's -- it is the full period that gets me the full number.

MS. YAMPOLSKY:  Yes.

MR. GARNER:  Okay.  Thank you.  That is also helpful.

Now, earlier today Mr. Shepherd asked you to file the DSPs for the four previous or current utilities to be amalgamated, and I am less interested in reviewing those DSPs again, but what I am interested in is, in each -- each one of these utilities has filed either an application like PowerStream very recently or an ICM or other application in between like Horizon.

In each one of those cases, though, I recall seeing the utility file a schedule for capital expenditures -- I think they're called Appendix 2ABs -- that via category show a forecast of capital spending for a period of four to five years after the application.

So some of them end in 2020.  Some of them end in 2019.  If you were HOBNI you would probably be 2019, based on their '14 filing.

And I am wondering if, if it is not already in evidence, if you could file for us those schedules, Appendix 2AB, that were last reviewed by the Board so that we could see the last forecast you had out of your DSP.


So rather than looking at your whole DSP -- I am not, you know...

MS. BUTANY-DESOUZA:  So I can offer that for Horizon, for PowerStream, and for Hydro One Brampton -- given that those DSPs were filed in the context of rebasing applications -- the chapter 2 filing requirements which includes all of these chapter 2 appendices of which Appendix 2AB is a part, would be included.

We can undertake to provide that for three out of four.  For Enersource, because there has not been a rebasing application in the context of the revision to the chapter 2 filing requirements, and I think that revision was in and around 2014, if I am not mistaken, when Appendix 2AB first came into play, we wouldn't have an Appendix 2AB that's been prepared for Enersource.

Similarly, as I identified to Mr. Shepherd, in taking the undertaking related to distribution system plans we would be filing the draft Enersource distribution system plan, but again there will not be an Appendix 2AB available.

MR. GARNER:  Yeah, I'm not -- first of all, I am not interested in -- well, I may be interested in it, but I am not seeking, in this request, anything about a future or the newest DSP.

What I am really trying to get -- and I appreciate your answer about Enersource.  I have to think about that for a minute.  But what I am really just trying to get is that table showing the last thing the Board saw and said, here's our projection of capital expenditures coming out of either our DSP, and I guess in the case of Enersource, to go to your answer, I don't recall, but Enersource would have filed, then, some --


MS. BUTANY-DESOUZA:  The last rebasing would have been 2013, and so that would have been filed in 2012, and there was no Appendix 2AB or similar at that time.

MR. GARNER:  Well, there would have been a capital 2AA.  2AA is like a capital plan.

MS. BUTANY-DESOUZA:  Yes.

MR. GARNER:  Would you know whether it would have a projection going four or five years, whatever the thing is?  At that time was there no projections put in?

MS. BUTANY-DESOUZA:  I want to say no, but I can't confirm with certainty without the old filing requirements in front of me, which I don't have.

MR. GARNER:  Maybe I could ask you to do this, since I don't want you to say no if it's there.

So if you could file the last 2AB for the three that you have, and then -- which as you say will be part of the DSPs that were then at that time reviewed by the Board -- and then whatever it is that's the closest that -- if Enersource had filed on a projection basis.

So what I am looking for is when the Board looked at Enersource and they -- and it provided a capital plan, whether it did just for the test year or whether it had a projection in that filing that said for our next four years, three years, whatever it was, so that we could just look quickly at what each one of the utilities had as a projection of their capital budget.  Is that --


MS. BUTANY-DESOUZA:  If it's available, then we
will --


MR. GARNER:  If it's available.  I take your proviso.

MS. BUTANY-DESOUZA:  -- undertake to provide it.

MS. HELT:  Okay.  So Undertaking JTC1.12 will be to provide the most recent Appendix 2A and B that have been filed with the Board --


MS. BUTANY-DESOUZA:  Sorry, 2AB.

MS. HELT:  2AB, yes, for Horizon, PowerStream, and Hydro One Brampton, and then to look for what you may have of a similar nature for Enersource which shows what there is on a projection basis.

MR. GARNER:  Yeah, on a capital forecast basis that was filed in front of the Board in the last application.

MS. HELT:  Okay.  So that is JTC1.12.

UNDERTAKING NO. JTC1.12:  TO PROVIDE THE MOST RECENT APPENDIX 2AB THAT HAS BEEN FILED WITH THE BOARD FOR HORIZON, POWERSTREAM, AND HYDRO ONE BRAMPTON, AND THEN TO LOOK FOR WHAT YOU MAY HAVE OF A SIMILAR NATURE FOR ENERSOURCE WHICH SHOWS WHAT THERE IS ON A PROJECTION BASIS.

MR. GARNER:  Thank you.  Now the reason I am asking is I am trying to understand in my own mind how the ICM forecast, first of all, that you have done arises based on the last projections that each one of those utilities has put forward.

So notwithstanding HOBNI, for instance, rate plan is, let's say, price cap, it did provide a projection and presumably filed its application at that time based on its understanding of what its capital program was going to be.

What I am trying to figure out is since that time, it seems to me that what has arisen in this application is a new projection of unforecasted capital plans.  Am I wrong?

MS. BUTANY-DESOUZA:  You're -- with respect, that's not the case.  So for -- if we can use the Horizon Utilities and PowerStream rate zones as examples, the projection on ICM, across the four utilities in fact, is based on eligibility for ICM.

So the Board's policy provides that if you are on a custom IR, then you are not eligible for ICM until your custom IR terminates.

MR. GARNER:  Hmm-hmm.

MS. BUTANY-DESOUZA:  So there's no ICM built into the model and included in our numbers for 20 -- well, we show 2016 through 2019, and that's exactly the five years of the Horizon Utilities custom IR term.  So it is not a change in that capex projection.

The DSP and, in fact, 2AB that we would have filed in  EB-2014-0002, that custom IR application, they would have included that capital projection for just that five-year period.

The incremental capital that is related in this application -- for instance, for the Horizon Utilities rate zone -- is beyond 2019.  So the custom IR term ends.  Horizon shifts on to price cap per the Board's MAADs consolidation guidelines, and it is within that second path of the period -- so from 2020 through to 2025, or the second five years -- that Horizon Utilities rate zone would be eligible for ICM.

MR. GARNER:  Okay.  I understand what you are saying.  Then again, looking at the SEC 18 table, why then am I looking at incremental capex in 2015 through 2019, let's say, for any of these?

So if I take PowerStream, the 443923 -- or the 4540.5, 23.4 in '15, '16 and '17, what is that about?

MS. YAMPOLSKY:  So I will take this one.  What you are looking here essentially -- let's say in the case of PowerStream, if you look at the last line in the PowerStream, ICM revenue, you will see that it is zero.

So essentially the way we build the model, we calculated, okay what would be the capital eligible in this here, but then again condition comes.  If it is custom IR, there is nothing kicks in because there is no ICM under custom IR.

MR. GARNER:  Okay.  I think I understand, but let me say it back to you, so that if I do understand it.

Are you saying -- let's use PowerStream.  It is just an easy example when we're looking at the table together, and I see where you're saying it is zero.

In 2015 I see 45, in 2016 40.5, 2017 23.4, are you saying to me that those are incremental capital amounts to the current forecasted capital budget of PowerStream, but that they will have no impact on the revenue requirement?

MS. YAMPOLSKY:  I will start from the end.  Yes, they don't have any impact on revenue requirement and those numbers here -- those numbers in 2015 for PowerStream is just a mathematical calculation of what would it have been.  Simply, what the -- what would be the capital eligible for ICM if you had done it in 2015.

But then because you have this condition and it's essentially goes down to zero, in 2016 for example or 2017 or for the whole period of custom IR.

MR. GARNER:  Okay.  But tell me how does that jive, so to speak, with the response that if I want to add up the 414, I have to take -- I take the columns, let’s say again PowerStream, the 44, I guess, or the 45, the incremental capital -- capex, in 2015, 2016 and I add those all up and add both pages up and I get $414.

I thought you said that is how I got to 414.

MS. YAMPOLSKY:  You can still do that.

MR. GARNER:  Yeah, I guess what I am getting confused at, and clearly I am confused, the $414 million incremental capital module money is or is not incremental to the forecasted capital spending that's already been put in front of the Board in whatever form -- leaving Enersource aside for just one second about whatever was put forward, but that's being put forward.

What I heard was that it is, but only after 2019, I think.

MS. BUTANY-DESOUZA:  For Horizon.

MR. GARNER:  For horizon, yes, because each one will be slightly different because of their --


MS. BUTANY-DESOUZA:  Horizon would have been after 2019.  For PowerStream, it would have been after 2020.

MR. GARNER:  Right.  So using that, again if I am going to add up the 414, then it would seem to me I would take Horizon and only start adding it up from the column of 2019 onward, because that is the only actual incremental capital that is going to be there?

MR. BASILIO:  I think that's right.

Let's have us take it away as an undertaking, but I think you have identified an error in the 414-million-dollar calculation.

The aggregation should be capital that is eligible for ICM, and I think perhaps, Mr. Garner, what you have identified, particularly for Horizon, although there's small amounts in those first five years, they’re amounts that add up to, let's say, I don't know -- four or $5 million incremental capital should not be part of that $414 million because there would be no ICM eligibility in the years 2016 to 2019 on those amounts.

MR. GARNER:  Thank you, if you could.

MR. BASILIO:  We're going to correct this response.

MR. GARNER:  If, in correcting that response -- just to make it clear what I am trying to do -- I am just trying to confirm what's being told to me through the evidence, what's been told to me just now through this chart and other places in the evidence, is that the 414 all arrives from a period post of the Board's reviewed capital programs of each one of the utilities that have been in there.

What I am trying to make sure has not happened -- or if it has happened, I guess, we understand why -- is to take, for instance, if we were to look at Brampton and Brampton was in front of the Board, let's say in 2014, they put forward I know a table in 2014 that went out to 2019.

I am trying to, in my mind, confirm that in fact there is no ICM in that period of the table they put in front of the Board saying here is our capital spending.

MS. BUTANY-DESOUZA:  So for Brampton, if we use Brampton as the example, though, they would have put forward a five-year projection, one for the rebasing year of 2015 and then the four subsequent IRM years.

But the four subsequent IRM years are eligible for ICM, notwithstanding that they were part of a cost of service application.

MR. GARNER:  Yes, I understand that interpretation.

MS. BUTANY-DESOUZA:  Okay, yes.

MR. GARNER:  I think if you read the Board's guidelines, too, what the Board basically says, I believe, is that if you then depart from what you have told us, you better actually explain what happened when you told us what was going on, irrespective of whether it was price cap or whatever -- whatever.

The reason they're always asking, in my understanding, under any cost of service for a projection under the new -- since about 2013 or whenever they started doing that and asking for DSPs, is to understand the capital program of a utility going forward.

To the extent then a utility departs from that, irrespective of what regime it is under and wants to do an ICM, the Board, as I understand the policy has said, explain to us what changed since the last time you were in front of us.

Now we may debate that, and we can debate that in argument.  I don't want to really debate it.  I just want to say that’s my understanding.

I am just trying to get facts now about whether in fact there are changes, so I can understand whether there is an argument to be made in any event, even if we disagree.

MS. BUTANY-DESOUZA:  Sure.  I mean, I think that maybe the one thing to bear in mind is that in the case of Brampton, there's also the advanced capital module, right.

You tell about it in the rebasing application.  It is supported by a DSP, and then you bring forward that incremental capital as an advanced capital module subsequently.

MR. GARNER:  Sure.  And if you can point those out in the response that would be helpful too, because I understand what you're saying.  Again, the Board would have said, we're anticipating where you are going now.

I think what I am really just trying to drive at, is there anyplace in this application that you are basically saying this:  We put something in front of the Board as a forecast in whatever proceeding of how I said in my rates, but we actually don't think that is going to be what we need.  We need an ICM.

And I just want to understand if that is part of the ICM, or if it is as you are suggesting, is it is really coming after the ends of programs where those things have expired and of course new things have happened and you are anticipating adjustments, which is -- that is all I am really trying to get at.

MS. BUTANY-DESOUZA:  Right.  What I was conveying is the latter, but as Mr. Basilio has committed to in JTC1.13, we will review this response and provide a clarification as necessary.

MR. GARNER:  Right.  Thank you.  And -- sorry, go ahead.

MS. HELT:  Just to interrupt for a moment.  We haven't yet marked or noted that --


MS. BUTANY-DESOUZA:  Oh.  Sorry.

MS. HELT:  -- as an undertaking, so that will be JTC1.13, in terms of correcting the response to SEC 18 and then to provide the additional information that you have just requested, Mr. Garner.
UNDERTAKING NO. JTC1.13:  TO REVIEW AND CORRECT THE RESPONSE TO SEC 18 AS NECESSARY; TO CONFIRM THAT THE NOTION THAT WHAT WE'RE APPLYING FOR, ESTIMATE, ANTICIPATE THAT WE MAY APPLY FOR, IS INCREMENTAL CAPITAL MODULES AS AND WHEN THOSE THAT ARE ON CUSTOM IR COME OFF OF CUSTOM IR OR IF THEY'RE ON PRICE CAP IR THEN THEY'RE WITHIN THAT RATE-MAKING REGIME OR ELIGIBLE FOR ICM.

MS. HELT:  If you could just clearly state what that is for the record so that we're clear on the second part of the undertaking.

MR. GARNER:  Well, I think maybe it might be better for the applicant to do that, since I think you may have a better idea now of what you want to provide.

MS. BUTANY-DESOUZA:  So what I think we have -- what I believe we have undertaken to provide is a review of SEC 18, provide any correction to SEC 18, the response to SEC 18, as necessary.  And then to confirm that the notion that what we're applying for, estimate, anticipate that we may apply for, is incremental capital modules as and when those that are on custom IR come off of custom IR or if they're on price cap IR then they're within that rate-making regime or eligible for ICM.

MR. GARNER:  Whether they depart from the forecast that was provided to the Board at the time the latest forecast was provided.  So that depending on who you were -- in HOBNI's case it would have been a forecast from two-14 to two-19, probably, right?  Whatever it was.  Yeah.

MS. BUTANY-DESOUZA:  It would have been '15 to '19.  Yes.

MR. GARNER:  Okay, thank you.  So that probably then answered -- not answers, but I just want to ask a question about something Board Staff, Mr. Davies, had asked you.

He was talking to you, how did you forecast the rate increases, and you had answered to him that we had done it through a custom IR -- concept of a -- next one would be a custom IR, which I was just trying to understand.  That would make sense given what you have just told me about the ICMs, because that is where you would have in a sense implemented the same concept of the ICM.  They would have just been part of your custom IR going forward, right?

MS. BUTANY-DESOUZA:  That's correct.  I mean, the expectation was that each would be on a custom IR and therefore the capital would be dealt with in that fashion.

In the absence of that in the deferred rebasing period the option before us would be the ICM.

MR. GARNER:  Right.  And that seems to tie together neatly, as I understand it too.  Okay, thank you.

I think all of my other questions were covered by either Board Staff or Mr. Shepherd and Energy Probe, so I think that is it.  Thank you very much, panel.

MS. HELT:  Thank you, Mr. Garner.

That leaves you, Mr. Brett, as the remaining questioner for this panel.

MR. BRETT:  Okay, thank you.
Questions by Mr. Brett:

MR. BRETT:  Good afternoon, panel.

MS. BUTANY-DESOUZA:  Good afternoon.

MR. BRETT:  My first question is a general one.  And I think you discussed this with Mr. Shepherd.  But this thing here, this two-page document, which is -- I think you sent this to us earlier this week.  You can have a look at it if you like.  Just show it -- maybe show it to the panel there.  I don't want to --


MS. HELT:  And it would be helpful if, when reviewing it, if you can just identify it for the record so that we know what it is.

MR. BRETT:  I think they will have to, because I don't -- this just came in.

MS. BUTANY-DESOUZA:  So in front of us is -- so we had filed confidentially the business case model, and so the printout in front of us is the dashboard or one tab of the business case model.

MS. HELT:  So what you have then is confidential then in front of you.

MS. BUTANY-DESOUZA:  Yes.

MS. HELT:  So then --


MR. BRETT:  All right.  Well, give it back to me then, and I will deal with it accordingly.  Hopefully we won't have to go into any confidential sessions on any of this, but if necessary I will.

What I want to know -- and I think you talked about with Shepherd quite a bit about your model -- you kept referring to your model, the Navigant model.

What was the purpose of putting this model together, I guess, is what I would like to know at a general level.

MR. BASILIO:  Well, firstly, I just want to clarify that the document you showed me is a component of a model that was put together by Deloitte as opposed to Navigant, so that's --


MR. BRETT:  Okay.  Under a contract with you?

MR. BASILIO:  Under contract.  And so what we had engaged them to do was to assist us with putting together a model that would support a business case.

And fundamentally, I mean, it's a very large, complicated model, but the premise of the model is to take the regulated LDC projections for OM&A and capex, and associated balance sheets, so working capital, to create a rate-making model consistent with the Board's policy for rate-making.

So essentially what you're doing is taking capital and operating projections.  You are determining regulated cash flows.  That allows you to determine a regulated P&L statement and associated balance sheet.  Then that is essentially kind of a starting point for looking at, you know, what do the four entities look like together, and then layering in synergies, the acquisition of Hydro One Brampton, and effectively how that is structured.  So being able to perform some sensitivity on purchase price, debt financing, and the sheet that -- the top sheet of the document that you provided really is a summary, largely a summary of a sensitivity between what is paid for for Hydro One Brampton, how it is levered, and the impact on the credit rating statistics of the new merged entity.

Now, there is a lot more underneath in the model, but, you know, essentially that is what the model does and that is what we commissioned Deloitte to do, help us consolidate these to look at it from a rate-making perspective, to understand the regulatory cash flows, to be able to layer in the synergies, and ultimately to look at customer and shareholder impacts and some sensitivity around the Brampton acquisition and its impact to the parties and the ongoing financial viability of Mergeco so that we can test that, one, and ultimately that we can test that, one, customers aren't harmed.  In fact, you know, I think the evidence shows that they're far and away better off.  And two, that from a financial viability perspective the new corporation can continue to support its operating and capital programs under a level of creditworthiness that is substantially the same as what it is now over the long-term, and it is a long-term projection.

MR. BRETT:  So, yes, I noticed a lot of the graphs that come out of this are, like, are -- go up to 38 --


MR. BASILIO:  Yes.

MR. BRETT:  -- and the purpose of these graphs is just to sort of -- I mean, these graphs are for each of the individual utilities, and is this sort of to get at the before and after?  Or the in and out comparison?

MR. BASILIO:  So some graphs are for the new consolidated entity.  What I thought the top sheet showed was two charts, one that shows adjusted funds from operations to debt, one that shows debt to capital.

I think there was some earnings projections underneath that frankly we did not use.  Those were adjusted further in another tab in the model.

But -- oh, and there's some growth rates, right, for each of the entities, which are assumptions, and --


MR. BRETT:  This is where I added mostly to -- if I could put it this way -- I mean, it was done as something that you could, as you say, build a business case and show to your shareholders and say, look, this makes sense.  That's sort --


MR. BASILIO:  Exactly, exactly.

MR. BRETT:  -- of the orientation of this.

MR. BASILIO:  That's right.  It is essentially the --


MR. BRETT:  And for which specific reference to the act of a later acquisition or the simultaneous acquisition of Brampton.  In other words, acquiring Brampton is not going to screw up an otherwise good merger, effectively.  If I put it in the vernacular.

MR. BASILIO:  I might put it a different way, but I think we would be largely saying the same thing.

MR. BRETT:  Okay.

MR. GLICKSMAN:  Just one clarification.  What our shareholders looked at was always a simultaneous merger and acquisition.  It never looked at anything different.  That was the only transaction that they looked at.

MR. BRETT:  I see.  Well, okay, thank you.  And so what -- all right, I think that is enough.

Let me go on.  I wanted to ask you a question about transaction costs and implementation, integration costs.  I did cover this off in one of my IRs, but -- and you referred me back to your evidence, Exhibit B, tab 6, schedule 2, page 1, which you can look at.  I don't think you will have to.

You've got in here kind of -- in the first paragraph of that evidence, you've got what I will call transaction costs.  The way I distinguish -- sorry?

MS. BUTANY-DESOUZA:  Sorry, you're at Exhibit B, tab 6, schedule 1?

MR. BRETT:  Yes, page 1 of 2 -- no, schedule 2, I'm sorry.

MS. BUTANY-DESOUZA:  Okay, one second please.

MR. BRETT:  Tab 6, schedule 2.  Sorry, I didn't mean to --


MS. BUTANY-DESOUZA:  Are you on page 2?

MR. BRETT:  I am on page 1.  I am on page 1, and really the question is very short, and I think fairly simple, although that is just my view of it.

The transactions costs, I am understanding -- and I want you to confirm this -- are the costs that are incurred by the shareholders of the LDC Co. in the process of putting together this deal.  You mentioned some of them here, due diligence, negotiation, regulatory, statutory reviews, and so on and so forth.

Am I right that most of those costs -- and I understand -- just to avoid a needless exchange here, I understand that those costs are picked up by the partners or by the shareholders, not by the LDC.

I take it that is the case whether those costs are incurred before or after the merger takes place, although my reading of this suggests they take -- mostly take place before.  In other words, they're -- is that accurate?

[Witness panel confers]

MR. BASILIO:  Mr. Brett, maybe I will try to answer it this way, which -- they're not ratepayer costs.  I think maybe. if that is what you're getting at --

MR. BRETT:  They're not ratepayer costs.

MR. BASILIO:  Whether they're sort of the pre-transaction individual costs of each of the parties to develop the deal, I will say that's bucket one, or whether they're bucket two, integration costs, so post merger integration costs to do things like converge ERP systems and CIS systems, to pay for employee severances, separation packages, those sort of things.  Neither of the costs in neither of those buckets are ratepayer costs.  They're all shareholder costs.

MR. BRETT:  Okay.  They are, but I want to just make sure I understand that, because that is surprising me a little bit.

Let me put it this way.  The transitional costs, you reported on the -- on something and we have had lots of discussion of that this morning on what you call the transitional integration implementation costs, the $96 million or whatever it is.

Now, what you refer to as transaction costs, or what I refer to as transaction costs, my understanding is that they are in addition to that.  Let me just -- and I say that in part because when you did your presentation day, you were asked by the Chair of the panel, Ms. Long, about those costs and who paid for them and who pays them.

And I thought you replied -- you made it clear that the transaction costs were not picked up by the LDC.  They were paid for by the shareholder.

So what I am really interested in is, first of all, confirming that -- and you were nodding at me earlier -- the transaction costs are over and above those 96 million or whatever of transition implementation costs.

MR. BASILIO:  Correct.

MR. BRETT:  And the second question is collectively -- in other words without trying to break it down into exactly who paid them -- roughly how much were they?

MR. BASILIO:  That would be difficult for me to estimate for the four parties.  I think what I can tell you for Horizon is they were approximately $5 million.

MR. BRETT:  Okay.

MR. BASILIO:  But I want to come back and answer
the -– so, you know, perhaps it is three times that much for the parties.  You know, that's probably a ballpark.

MR. BRETT:  Right.

MR. BASILIO:  In responding to Ms. Long, and I don't recall if that was transcribed or not.

MS. BUTANY-DESOUZA:  It wasn't.

MR. BASILIO:  But I think if I or one of us responded in that manner, I think what we were trying to say is that ultimately the shareholders pick up that cost, but they do come through the LDC.

Meaning that if lawyers are being paid, or consultants are being paid, including Deloitte, the development of this model, each of the LDCs would have paid those costs.  And what would they have done?  They would have reduced income in the year.

So the notion that shareholders pay means that shareholders bear those costs through a reduction of net income and dividends.

Ratepayers don't pay for them.  They don't and will never form part of a customer rate.

MR. BRETT:  Okay, that's helpful.  Maybe to put it another way, and let's talk about the implementation costs, the two categories of them.  If, God forbid, there were no savings from this transaction -- which I don't believe will be the case -- that would still prevail.  That is the shareholders' costs, whatever happens.

In other words, what you are -- I am not trying to be sneaky here at all.  What your evidence says is, well, we're going to incur these costs, but they're going to be more than offset by the various savings streams.

All I am really asking now is, assume there were no savings streams after you bore those costs, those costs would still be for the account of the shareholder.

MR. BASILIO:  That's correct.  The 96.3 million or point 3 or point 7 million dollars that we're estimating, irrespective of the savings, those costs will be shareholder costs.

MR. BRETT:  Okay, thank you.

I am going to be going through this and sort of taking out as I go what was covered.  Just another sort of a basic question.

The business plan that you were saying is informed by the model and the business plan -- is this business plan that was attached to -- dated August 27th, 2015 that was attached to Board Staff 31, right?

MS. BUTANY-DESOUZA:  That's correct.

MR. BRETT:  Is that -- this business plan is full of references to 2016 budgets and all sort of things.

Is this the -- is there an updated business plan or is this it?

MR. BASILIO:  No, there is not an updated business plan.  This is it.

MR. BRETT:  So as we said this morning, we just move everything one year to the right?

MR. BASILIO:  Yes.

MR. BRETT:  Okay.

Now, you had some discussion of this earlier, but the capital program that you have shown here in your evidence is essentially, as I listened this morning, it's basically identical to the sum of the capital programs of the four firms.  Is that correct, or is there any --


MR. BASILIO:  That's where it starts.  So we would have taken each of the existing capital programs for each of the four entities, put them together.  We had a number of teams then that would have looked at those capital programs and tried to identify areas for savings, synergies -- many of those things were largely IT-related -- avoidance of investment in systems.  I mean, there was some other stuff.

And so you would have started with that.  You would have deducted the savings and synergies identified to then get to the revised capital plan for the merged entity.

MR. BRETT:  Yes.  The savings not from the streams of -- the savings in the sense of opportunities to reduce the capital outlay.  Is that...

MR. BASILIO:  Right.  Capital synergies.

MR. BRETT:  Yes, okay.  Okay.  And that --


MR. BASILIO:  Identified in one of the -- I don't have the table in front of me, but, you know, one example of it here is in Exhibit B, tab 6, Schedule 2, page 2.  There are two tables.  The cash savings tables that are in the business case in the evidence that identifies the capital component that would have been taken off of the aggregate of the capital programs from the four merging parties.

MR. BRETT:  Oh, I see.  So what you have identified in the -- yeah, I see.  What you have identified as the -- in your main tables as the capital savings are, in fact, what you are describing to me now.

MR. BASILIO:  Correct.

MR. BRETT:  Okay.  Now, I have some questions from the business plan, and one of them was -- I don't know whether you need to turn this up.  You certainly -- if you do, you do.  I think page 20 of the business plan you --


MS. BUTANY-DESOUZA:  This is confidential.

MR. BRETT:  Yeah, well, there are going to be problems with the paging of this stuff.  It -- let's just see here.

Okay.  Here we go.  I'm sorry, page 70.  I have an issue with my own writing, so it's -- anyway, page 70, the last paragraph on the page.  The operation plan -- operational plan.  It says:

"Centralizing appropriate functions may create" -- my emphasis -- "scale and lower costs, which is a fundamental objective of the Mergeco."

Now, I am taking that to say that you don't know whether centralizing functions will, in fact, create lower costs.  It may.  Am I reading that correctly?  I mean, you are saying it may, not that it will.

MR. GLICKSMAN:  I think if you look at the next sentence, it says:

"A necessary step is to identify which functions can be centralized and what functions are left decentralized."

MR. BRETT:  Yeah.  So are you referring me to a document?

MR. GLICKSMAN:  I am referring you to the same paragraph, the next sentence, the following sentence.  It says those decisions have not been made, will be made later on.


MR. BRETT:  I see that.  But that is not my question, at least I don't think that was my question.

My question is, look, I am a lawyer.  Words are everything to me.  You say in your document that you may create scale and you may get lower costs.

I am saying -- asking you your -- by this centralization exercise that you are going to go through, is it fair for me to say that you don't know for sure whether you will get lower costs or scale or lower costs because of scale, I guess?  You don't know.  You think you will, but you don't know.

MR. BASILIO:  I think the scope -- the scope of this paragraph is narrower than more broadly the synergies that have been identified.  And so I think what we don't know here or what we may find would be incremental to the synergies that have already been identified.

Most of the synergies that have been identified -- and I think we have stated this through the evidence -- are largely in IT process support function areas, as opposed to the line functions.

MR. BRETT:  I agree.

MR. BASILIO:  And so this paragraph is really speaking to the line functions, for which, as Mr. Glicksman said, that is the subject of further determination, and we may get additional synergies from that not already identified in the business case.

So further rationalization here, it is an investigation that may yield additional synergies, but we don't know yet.

So I understand what your question was.

MR. BRETT:  Yes.

MR. BASILIO:  But this sentence shouldn't be read to suggest or to cast doubt on the synergies that we have already identified.  This is something additional or separate.

MR. BRETT:  Okay.  I take your point.  You're saying that the other synergies, if I can paraphrase it back to you, the other synergies that you have put forward are ones that will arise whether you centralize or not.  And that these -- if I can just add a comment on the explanation you gave me.

If I took you to the next page there where you talk about utility function, centralized, decentralized, I am reading this -- are you reading this to say that -- I am reading this to say that the centralized -- the utility functions, are they the existing utility functions that are centralized?

I am reading this to say that you think that, with the merger, you can centralize such things as corporate, human resources, regulatory, procurement, customer service, finance information, and asset management -- in fact, I think I am right on that.  That is what that says.

MR. BASILIO:  But for the transactional information --


MR. BRETT:  Those aren't the line responsibilities, necessarily.

MR. BASILIO:  No, no.  For the central -- for the transactional informational services, yes.

MR. BRETT:  Yes.  Okay.  But these are the things that you -- the ones I read are the ones that you are looking at centralizing?

MR. BASILIO:  So we've shown in the table here on page 71 those utility functions that we're proposing to centralize and those that are decentralized; that's right.

MR. BRETT:  Okay.  Going back to my first point, I guess what you were telling me there is, if I understand it correctly, that the savings that you have put forward, I had thought that some of these savings that you had put forward, for example, in IT were derived from effectively creating a common IT system for --


MR. BASILIO:  Absolutely.

MR. BRETT:  -- everybody.

MR. BASILIO:  Yes.

MR. BRETT:  So I don't get that you're saying they're incremental to --


MR. BASILIO:  No, no, no, for IT -- sorry, I was talking about -- and honestly, this may be because we're -- you're getting -- I can see you are going to go -- you're moving into more depth on the operation side of the business.

And so what I would propose to do -- I was willing to take sort of a high-level question, you know, on a line function issue, but I think if you have a line of questioning that is going to go into the operations, I would like to -- I would like to have that deferred to panel 2, please.

MR. BRETT:  Okay, that's fine.  I actually...  I don't know that I have much more.  It was more just -- but let me -- thank you, I will pursue that if I don't get it covered some other way here.

Okay.  Now, on page -- let me just look at page 77 for a moment here.  No.  I'm sorry, that's the high-level stuff.  Just give me a moment.  I want to...

I want to go back to a couple of Staff IRs, and I would like to just ask you a little bit about a follow-up question to what you were asked this morning.

This has to do really with the listing of the capital savings and the operating cost savings and the transition costs.


MR. BASILIO:  Do you have a reference, Mr. Brett?

MR. BRETT:  Yes, I do.  I have several of them, but I am just kind of lining this up properly.

MR. BASILIO:  Okay.

MR. BRETT:  If I look at Staff number 9, you have a series of -- you have broken down the transition costs into operating and capital.  And what I -- I guess what I am -- what I am really interested in here is -- and I understand that you have given me, on the human resources side you've -- I'm looking at, yes, Staff 9.

You gave me, I believe in an answer to one of our IRs, the breakdown of human resources into, essentially into -- you’re thinking this is for the next panel, are you?

MS. BUTANY-DESOUZA:  Yes.  It depends on where you are going with the question, but likely.

MR. BRETT:  All right.  Let me just say where I am going.  I would like to ask whether you can provide more detail on these items.

In other words, what you have done here is, you know, you've given a line saying, human resources, 35 million bucks in transition costs.

Well, you know, what is that?  Are you able to describe that in more detail?  Or is someone able to kind of -- am I right in saying that, and no -- I find that the descriptions of a number of these categories are clear enough, but what is inside those boxes isn't very clear.  Like how do you justify numbers like 34 million in human resources and, you know, engineering systems consolidation about $10 million.

Is there more information you can provide on each of these items, or is this as far as it goes?

MS. BUTANY-DESOUZA:  Panel 2 can help you out with this one.

MR. BRETT:  All right.  And I wanted to ask the same question with respect to Board Staff 3, table 1.  I guess by way of advance notice, I wanted to ask the same question there, you know, what's inside each of those amounts.

MR. BASILIO:  Panel 2 will be happy to respond.

MR. BRETT:  Okay.  Let me move on, because I wanted to get that out of the way before I forgot about it, frankly.

This is just a small point, but at page 93 of the business plan, you talk about the acquisition facility for -- I am going by my notes here -- it will be at market rates.

My question for you is that a fixed rate acquisition facility, or is it a floating rate?

MR. BASILIO:  Well, the facility itself will be a floating rate facility.

MR. BRETT:  Okay.

MR. BASILIO:  Essentially a credit line.

MR. BRETT:  Do you have the ability to fix that as time goes on, if it's ...

MR. BASILIO:  Not the facility itself, but the intention would be, just as we do today, would be to take out --


MR. BRETT:  To term it out?

MR. BASILIO:  To term it out, exactly.

MR. BRETT:  That's just to show I was listening this morning.  That's serious language.

[Laughter]

Now, at page 93 of the -- I am going to jump around a bit here, and I apologize.  But in order to get through this, I'm going to have to just go with the flow of my notes.

At page 93 of the business plan, you make the statement:

“Mergeco will not have sufficient borrowing capacity to effectively realize its strategic growth objectives.”

And this I think has to do with what you discussed with Mr. Shepherd this morning, that you are eventually going to have -- your plan was to have Mergeco effectively transformed into a partnership at some stage.  Is that correct?

MR. BASILIO:  Right.  We provided what I would call notice in the application that it is our intention to investigate the utilization of a partnership as a means to attract private investment capital.  But at this time, we're essentially not in a position.

We don't have that structure together, nor do we really have the tax rulings and otherwise to -- we haven't done enough due diligence to bring that forward.

What we did not want to do was to come back in a year's time and surprise the Energy Board and intervenors with this motion of putting a -- you know, trying to move the assets into a partnership structure.

But at this time, we're in no position to do so.

MR. BRETT:  Okay.  It seems to me that you are fairly clear at different places in your evidence that you do contemplate -- you do contemplate significant growth and you talk in terms of additional M&A.

In fact, I think one of the titles of the groups that will be in the third company -- I will call it the third company, the innovation and sustainability company, one of the jobs of that company will be to seek out opportunities.

So is it fair to say that in due course, you are going to seek to expand this business substantially beyond the four companies?

MR. BASILIO:  Provided that we can find -- well, that's opportunistic, really.

I mean, one, you have to have opportunity.  But two, you have to have financial flexibility.

MR. BRETT:  Right.

MR. BASILIO:  Really, within the scope of what we have before the Board today, what we've demonstrated is that we have sufficient financial flexibility to deal with all of our businesses as they exist today and over the long-term.

And you referred to the long-term projections in the business model.  That's one of the things we wanted to make sure of, is that we have that financial flexibility.

If an opportunity arose to, you know, to make significant acquisitions based on some future opportunity, we don't have the financial flexibility to do that.  That's something we need to find.  That's probably not a surprise, given the tax regime governing these entities and the fact that, you know, you face a significant tax bill if you have new private equity.

So that is really what that refers to.  It is about, you know, for Mergeco in its totality, addressing financial flexibility for future growth.

But what I want to make clear here on the record is that we have sufficient financial flexibility, the evidence demonstrates that to provide for the current businesses of Mergeco, most importantly the LDC.

MR. BRETT:  My next question is the affiliate relations -- the service level agreement that ultimately the LDC Co. will have with -- I guess it is Serveco, or the unregulated company, you mention that you haven't done it yet, or it was in draft.

I think you would agree with me that one is required at some point because we're talking about an affiliate here.

But my question to you is:  When you do this, when this agreement is completed -- well, first of all, I guess it’s a two-part question.  When are you likely to do the work and have it?  And secondly, will you be filing it, when you do, I mean filing it with the Board and, I suppose, filing it with -- well, filing it on the public record so that people can have a look at it?

You may be required to do that any way by law, I am not too sure, but...

By the way, I am not suggesting that I am contemplating you would have to file it from our point of view before the thing is, you know, before this deal is -- before this hearing is finished.

I am just saying, look, you're going to have this at some point.  Will we see this?

MS. BUTANY-DESOUZA:  The interesting thing is that usually we file -- like, in the normal course we file service level agreements as part of evidence included in rebasing applications.

MR. BRETT:  Yes.  But this is not a normal application.  You are rebasing ten years from now.

MS. BUTANY-DESOUZA:  That's correct.

MR. BRETT:  And presumably, are you saying that you -- are you seriously saying that you won't file it for ten years?

MR. BASILIO:  Well, I think --


MR. BRETT:  I think I would like to know that if that's what you're saying.

MR. BASILIO:  Yeah, I think Ms. Butany this morning, in the context of -- I can't remember if it was ICM applications.  We were talking about what might be required to support future applications.

And, you know, a transfer pricing methodology or, you know, service level agreement -- I mean, we file transfer pricing methodologies with cost-of-service applications. We file service level agreements as well.

But, you know, in supporting ICM or other applications in the interim, that may be something that the Board wants to see.

We would certainly want to have those -- we would want to have those things in place for a variety of reasons, not so much -- I mean, of course having evidence for the Board, that's very important.

But frankly, these things are necessary to operate the business and be able to manage distinct business lines and evaluate their performance on an ongoing basis.

So, you know, these are analyses that we expect to go through, I would say, over the next several months, you know, to establish the businesses and business lines and be able to evaluate performance.

But the -- the sort of evidence I think you're suggesting that the Board would typically see, we suspect would have to be available at the next application, you know, perhaps an ICM application or update application or IRM application, something like that.  Possibly, if the deal closes December 31st, that would be --


MS. BUTANY-DESOUZA:  August 2017.

MR. BRETT:  Hmm-hmm.  So you're suggesting you
might --


MS. BUTANY-DESOUZA:  So it would be in the next --


MR. BRETT:  -- file it -- you could file it by then?

MS. BUTANY-DESOUZA:  The next rate -- that would be the time of the next rate applications for all four rate zones, and so --


MR. BRETT:  And effectively they would be -- they would be -- I see what you're saying.  They would be paying it.  So it would be -- what would the format of it look like?  I suppose you would have to work that through.  But effectively it would be the four utilities combining to sign a contract with the unregulated utility in the interim.  Is that the idea?

MS. BUTANY-DESOUZA:  Well, it would be LDC Co. signing it, because the four predecessor utilities would no longer exist -- you know, in name only they exist by rate zone --


MR. BRETT:  All right.  Yeah, I misspoke, I guess.  The LDC Co. would sign it, but it would allocate responsibility for the cost to the four utilities on some equitable basis, as you said.

MR. BASILIO:  Well, I think maybe to answer the earlier question, we would have to have -- we would have to have that analysis completed and in place sometime I would say mid-next year --


MR. BRETT:  Okay.

MR. BASILIO:  -- as a practical matter, to actually operate the business and evaluate performance.

MR. BRETT:  Okay, thank you.

We had asked you in BOMA 6 about reliability and customer service.  And I just wanted to clarify.  You had...

MR. BASILIO:  We suspect this is a panel 2 question if it is SAIDI, SAIFI, and -- I am just an accountant.

MR. BRETT:  Yeah, no, that's fine.  It has to do with commitments about reliability and customer service.  So you're saying it is over to --


MR. BASILIO:  Panel 2, yes.

MS. BUTANY-DESOUZA:  Panel 2.

MR. BRETT:  All right.  Okay.  Here is a -- we're back to -- I think this is probably one for you.  We had a question relative to -- a couple of them, but a question relative to the acquisition of HOBNI.

You had stated that you were paying a 50 percent premium to the book value of the company.

MR. BASILIO:  To rate base, but, you know...

MR. BRETT:  To rate base?

MR. BASILIO:  Yes.

MR. BRETT:  Okay.  Are you buying the assets or the shares?

MR. BASILIO:  Well, the way -- the way the transaction is structured is, we will -- LDC Co. will acquire the shares --


MR. BRETT:  Right.

MR. BASILIO:  -- from the province, and then -- so then one LDC Co. owns the shares of HOBNI, HOBNI will then sell the assets to LD -- HOBNI will then transfer the assets to LDC Co.  So it ends up effectively being an asset acquisition, but it is structured a little bit too.

MR. BRETT:  Okay.  And the -- now, I am aware that -- about the rule on the premium, but -- you are going to borrow -- now, I think you said you would -- just broad strokes -- you were going to borrow about 73 percent of the cost of purchasing HOBNI?

MR. BASILIO:  70 percent, so about $425 million.

MR. BRETT:  70 percent.  And would it be fair to say that -- well, I guess two questions.  Stepping back a little bit.

Do you have knowledge or have you looked at other acquisitions, MAADs applications, acquisitions in the province in the last few years to allow you to say whether the 50 percent premium is high in relation to the typical premium paid for an acquisition?

[Witness panel confers]

MR. BASILIO:  Mr. Brett, respectfully, I think that question is outside the scope of the -- I am not sure that that is relevant to the proceeding.  I mean, it is a negotiated price --


MR. BRETT:  With the province.

MR. BASILIO:  -- and I think really we're prepared to answer questions about whether the acquisition impacts the financial viability of the transaction.

I think that is probably the point.  But to get into negotiation and -- I think that is outside the scope.

MR. BRETT:  All right.  Fair enough.  Well, let me ask a question that does deal with the impacts.

Can you comment on -- does borrowing this amount of money -- which is I think something in the order of 400 million -- I don't have the number in front of me right here --


MR. BASILIO:  It's about 425 million.

MR. BRETT:  425.  That will -- would it be fair to say that looking -- that everything else being equal, that loan will encumber your balance sheet, the balance sheet of LDC Co., and therefore will make it less able to borrow to some degree in the future and therefore will impact on the ratepayers?

MR. BASILIO:  Well, we're taking on additional debt -- so firstly, we're taking on additional debt.  So, you know, there's an addition of debt to the balance sheet.

No, it will not impact the ratepayers.  As you know, the way rate-making works is the Board essentially deems the capital structure for the LDC.  Borrowing does not change the rate base side of the equation.

And so the amount of debt that Mergeco can recover interest costs on does not change as a result of the HOBNI acquisition.

Does it impact our financial flexibility?  With respect to the business that we've provided in the business case, so the LDC operations and the other smallish, non-regulated businesses, the answer is no.

We can continue to provide for the operating and capital programs comfortably of the new merged entity for the lengthy period that you identified in the business model, and we can do so at a level of creditworthiness
that is effectively the same as the four merging predecessors, meaning that the cost at which we would borrow is not going to change as a result of this transaction, and we have provided evidence in this regard.

We have provided what I would say are the two key financial ratings statistics used by rating agencies, AFFO to debt and debt to capital, and those are well within the range of an A-range rating, which most utilities that don't have commodity exposure are rated at in North America.

So you know, again I think what we have tried to demonstrate with the evidence is that from a financial viability perspective, ratepayers are largely indifferent.

MR. BRETT:  I guess that was a fast ball over the middle of the plate, wasn't it?

[Laughter]

You handed out a confidential piece of evidence this morning in reference to an AMPCO 8, and I guess I want to ask a question on this -- but as I look at it, it is going to be the next panel.  I wanted to try to ask the question of course in a way that wouldn't require us to go into another huddle.

BOMA 8, if I can turn you to BOMA 8 for a moment, what I have tried to do here is go through all of our stuff and then and maybe one or two questions that come up from this morning.

But I heard the answer this morning at one point -- I'm sorry, that is also for the next panel.

Yeah, I want to speak for a minute about dividends.  As I understand the -- and we asked you a question on this.  I am sure there were lots of other questions on it.  But my understanding is that, I guess, BOMA 13 deals -- BOMA 15, among others, deals with dividends.

My understanding is that the -- I am looking at part (e), E as in Edward, on page 2 of 3.  The current situation -- am I right in summarizing the current situation, dividend policies of the companies that PowerStream is 50 percent at the moment?

MR. GLICKSMAN:  Correct.

MR. BRETT:  And --


MR. GLICKSMAN:  Correct.

MR. BRETT:  Yes?

MR. GLICKSMAN:  Yes, that's correct.

MR. BRETT:  And HOBNI is between 57 and 65.  Do you know, could you advise as to what the effective rate has been, the average rate over the last few years?  There is no one from HOBNI on the panel, but ...

MR. BASILIO:  I can't.

MR. BRETT:  Would it be possible to take an undertaking to give us that?

MR. BASILIO:  Sure.

MS. BUTANY-DESOUZA:  Sure.

MR. BRETT:  Thank you.

MR. BASILIO:  For the past how many years, Mr. Brett?

MR. BRETT:  Let's say the last five years on average.

MR. BASILIO:  Okay.

MS. HELT:  That will be undertaking JTC1.14.
UNDERTAKING NO. JTC1.14:  TO ADVISE THE EFFECTIVE RATE FOR DIVIDENDS THE PAST FIVE YEARS, ON AVERAGE


MR. BRETT:  And then -- thank you.  And then the Enersource and Horizon are currently at 60 percent, is that correct?

MR. BASILIO:  That's correct.

MR. BRETT:  And you are proposing that the new company would be at 60 percent, is that right?

MR. BASILIO:  That's correct.

MR. BRETT:  So you will be effectively increasing the dividend of PowerStream by 10 percent.

MR. GLICKSMAN:  Not quite 10 percent.  As I mentioned earlier, we give an extra interest payment to our shareholders that is essentially an extra dividend.

So in addition --


MR. BRETT:  Sorry, could you repeat that?  I just didn’t get the --


MR. GLICKSMAN:  In addition to the dividend that we give to our shareholders, we pay them the difference between 5.58 and 4.41 percent interest on shareholder debt, and that's not included in rates, that difference.

So that difference is really an additional dividend that we pay to them.  It is not counted as a dividend in terms of calculating it, but it is an additional amount.  So it increases the total amount they get above 50 percent.

MR. BRETT:  When you raise the -- when the dividend, when the dividend increases to sixty, just so I understand, you would be paying the sixty percent dividend and the differential on the debt.

MR. GLICKSMAN:  No.  The differential will disappear with this transaction.

MR. BRETT:  What is the net effect on the amount of your dividend in percentage terms?  In other words, is it
-- let me put it another way.

Is the sum of what you are going to pay on a 60 percent dividend with no shareholder loan differential greater or lesser than what you are paying with a 50 percent dividend and a differential in a shareholder loan?

[Witness panel confers]

MR. GLICKSMAN:  It will be greater, and the exact amount is in Navigant's report.  If you wish, we can take an undertaking to give that to you.

MR. BRETT:  Would you do that, please?

MR. GLICKSMAN:  Yes.

MS. HELT:  That will be undertaking JTC1.15.
UNDERTAKING NO. JTC1.15:  TO ADVISE THE AMOUNT OF THE INCREMENTAL PAYMENT THAT WILL BE MADE BY POWERSTREAM TO WHOMEVER THEY MAKE THE PAYMENTS TO, AT A 60 PERCENT DIVIDEND RATE RELATIVE TO THE PREVIOUS 50 PERCENT DIVIDEND RATE PLUS THE DIFFERENTIAL, THE PAYMENT THEY MAKE RELATED TO THE DIFFERENTIAL BETWEEN THE SHAREHOLDER LOAN AND THE MARKET RATE

MS. BUTANY-DESOUZA:  Can you repeat -- so the undertaking is to?

MR. BRETT:  Well, it is -- Mr. Glicksman just spelled it out.  It is to advise the amount of the incremental payment that will be made by PowerStream to whomever they make the payments to, at a 60 percent dividend rate relative to the previous 50 percent dividend rate, plus the differential, the payment they make related to the differential between the shareholder loan and, I Guess, the market rate.  Okay?

MS. BUTANY-DESOUZA:  I am trusting Teresa got that.  I will read the transcript.

MR. BRETT:  We can fix it up later, if you don't.

MS. BUTANY-DESOUZA:  Yes, perfect.  Thank you.

MR. BRETT:  Well, that's everything, except I just want to check quickly on these notes from this morning.  I don't think there is much that was not covered.

No, that's fine.  Thank you.  Those are my questions.

MS. HELT:  All right.  Then I think that there are no further questions for panel 1.  Why don't we take a quick ten-minute break for the panels to change up and then we will come back.

I understand Mr. Garner has one question for panel 2 and maybe we will proceed with him first and then, Mr. Brett, you can close the day for us.  Thank you.
--- Recess taken at 3:20 p.m.
--- On resuming at 3:31 p.m.
LDC CO. - PANEL 2, resumed

Brenda Schacht

Dan Pastoric
Norman Wolff
Colin Macdonald

MS. HELT:  All right.  Welcome back.  We now have witness panel 2.  As a preliminary matter, I would just like to address a matter that Mr. Shepherd raised earlier this morning with respect to an e-mail concerning a question from AMPCO's counsel.

Mr. Macdonald, I believe you have a copy of that e-mail and you are prepared to provide an undertaking to the question set out, but could I just ask that you read that into the record, if you are prepared to give that undertaking.

MR. MACDONALD:  Yes.  We would have to undertake this.  There is some work to be done.  So I will just read the -- this is from Ms. Grice from AMPCO.  I will just read her question into the record.

MS. HELT:  Thank you.

MR. MACDONALD:  And this relates to TC AMPCO 6, and the question is:

"Please provide the asset replacement rate as a percent for each individual LDC for the years 2010 to 2015 and forecast for 2016 and the forecast asset replacement rate for LDC Co. for the ten-year period and show the calculation."

MS. HELT:  Thank you.  So that will be noted as Undertaking JTC1.16.
UNDERTAKING NO. JTC1.16:  TO PROVIDE THE ASSET REPLACEMENT RATE AS A PERCENT FOR EACH INDIVIDUAL LDC FOR THE YEARS 2010 TO 2015 AND FORECAST FOR 2016 AND THE FORECAST ASSET REPLACEMENT RATE FOR LDC CO. FOR THE TEN-YEAR PERIOD AND SHOW THE CALCULATION.

MS. HELT:  Right.  I will turn it over to Mr. Garner.

MR. GARNER:  Thank you.
Questions by Mr. Garner:

MR. GARNER:  I have really only one question left on this.  And if you turn up SEC 41, which is at page 77 of 79.  That is PDF page of the interrogatory responses.  And this is expected directors and officers of the company.  And I just wanted to walk through that.

So my first question is, each one of these people are currently, as I understand it -- are they currently CEOs of the existing utilities?  Is that their current roles?

MS. SCHACHT:  Yes, that's correct.

MR. GARNER:  Thank you.  And Mr. Gregg, who is now under this organization designated as innovation, growth, and corporate services, is that an employed position of LDC Co. or Holdco?

MS. SCHACHT:  The report -- that reporting structure or where people are going to sit is still under some review, and some of those decisions have not yet been finalized.

MR. GARNER:  Okay.  So it is not clear right now Mr. Gregg's role reports to Holdco or LDC Co.  That is yet to be determined?

MS. SCHACHT:  That's correct.

MR. GARNER:  Okay.  Thank you.  Although that made Mr. Gregg nervous.

And just so I understand, Holdco, it, in addition to the LDC, it is responsible for oversight of the affiliates that will be an outcome of this transaction; is that right?  What I am trying to figure out is, other than the LDC, are there other entities that that position is responsible for?  Do you know?  Or is that under determination still?

[Witness panel confers]

MS. SCHACHT:  I think that that is still under some determination.

MR. GARNER:  Okay.  And this may answer then -- I think I may know the answer then to the next question, or maybe I don't.

Is there somewhere in the evidence that you provide an organizational structure of the new company, the new LDC Co.?  For instance, you know, whether it has one VP of finance, two VPs of finance, you know, that type of structure and then showing, you know, what reports underneath it?

MS. SCHACHT:  What has been provided to date in the business case is a high-level organization structure supporting the positions that are listed in SEC 41, and some of the functions below that.  We are still in the process of determining the broader organization structure.

MR. GARNER:  Well, I wonder if you could do this for me.  I am not familiar with the one that was in the -- the business plan -- sorry, let me back up.  The business plan was prepared when?  Where you say this document is or where it shows this?

MS. SCHACHT:  It was August of 2015.

MR. GARNER:  Okay.  So now we are in August of 2016.  So what I am wondering if you could do is prepare or provide, if you have it, the most current organizational structure of LDC Co. to show us what is the management structure of that utility that the Board is going to look at and approve or not as part of this consolidation.

MS. SCHACHT:  We can provide some structure that has already been approved, but the structure -- the full organizational structure has not yet been approved.

MR. GARNER:  Okay.  I can appreciate that.  And just so you know where I am coming from, it seems to me clear -- it may be to no one else -- that in order for the Board to determine there is no harm they must understand a semblance of how this new company is managed and what it looks like in its new form.

So I am just trying to get what that is so that we can see it and then how these people might or might not fit into that.

So if you could -- and is that an undertaking to provide a corporate structure as it exists and the proposed for the Board to review?  Sorry.  It is not corporate structure.  It is an organizational structure.  Because you do have corporate structures in the evidence, I have seen that.  Sorry.

MS. SCHACHT:  Yes.

MR. CASS:  It could only be what has actually been approved at this time, and I am not sure to what extent there might be any confidentiality attached to even that.  I would have to leave that for the applicants to advise on.

MS. SCHACHT:  Yes.  If we filed any further information based on what's been approved, it would have to be filed in confidence.

MR. GARNER:  Right.  Well, let me query you on that. I am not particularly -- although, you know, if you want to give it -- I am not particularly looking for names.  I am looking for structure.  So I want to see, is there one VP of finance?  Is there four VPs of finance?  Is there going to be two human resource heads?  Is there going to be one human resource head?  I mean, how is this new company actually being managed?

And so that the Board could say, yes, that looks like there's no harm in anything there.  So I am not looking for anything that would be confidential as much as I am looking for what is the corporate organization of this company.  Just if that is helpful, Mr. Cass.  I don't know --


MR. CASS:  Mark, I think that is what has not necessarily been determined down to the level that I think you seem to be looking for.  I understand that there will be information available in the licence application, if that helps you.

MR. GARNER:  Well, I am not sure it does, and I am not sure what to leave you with.  I guess the question will be, you know -- and to give the example, you know -- I don't want to make it silly, but to give the example clearly of, you don't have a VP of finance, the Board might say, gee, that is kind of strange, and we're not sure that there will be no harm to customers if you don't have a VP of operations, they would say, well, that seems strange too, you know.

So Mr. Cass, I am not trying to be difficult, but I am thinking there must be something the company would have as an organizational structure, and whatever you can do to help in that, that we could look at and say, this is the way this company looks as a manage -- this is how we're going to manage this company.  And if you're saying, is, no, we don't have that, then that's fine.  I will accept that as it is.

But if there is anything you can help us with, that would be useful.

MR. CASS:  Okay.  So Mark, just to make sure, this is on the record -- of course, we're talking about a company that doesn't exist yet.

MR. GARNER:  Hmm-hmm.

MR. CASS:  So that is in part what makes this difficult.

Perhaps we could take it away and just indicate that we used our best efforts to come up with something that is responsive to what you are asking for.  If it needs to be confidential we can indicate that at the time.

MR. GARNER:  Okay.  And if it does need to be confidential, it would be helpful if I understood why.

And I think when you do this -- because I know you may -- depending on what you find, because I just, I am not looking, as I said, for particularly names and numbers.  I am just looking for a plan for this company.

But I understand why it could be, because they haven't gotten to that point, Mr. Cass, so as long as you are just helping to explain that to me when you provide it, that would be acceptable.

MS. HELT:  All right then.  So if I can just try and summarize that.  What we have is an undertaking which will be noted as JTC1.17 to use best efforts to provide any management organizational -- no.  Let's change that.

To provide a most current organizational chart for the management structure of the LDC Co. and that chart is not to provide names, but rather positions of the management structure of the utility.

And again, this is for the applicant to do this on a best efforts basis, and it will likely be something that may be produced in confidence.  But that, again, is to be determined.

So for now we will mark it as a confidential undertaking.  So actually it should be JTCX1.17 and if it does not need to be confidential, then it will be put on the public record.

UNDERTAKING NO. JTCX1.17:  ON A BEST-EFFORTS BASIS, TO PROVIDE A MOST CURRENT ORGANIZATIONAL CHART FOR THE MANAGEMENT STRUCTURE OF THE LDC CO. AND THAT CHART IS NOT TO PROVIDE NAMES, BUT RATHER POSITIONS OF THE MANAGEMENT STRUCTURE OF THE UTILITY

MR. GARNER:  That would be most helpful because, as Mr. Cass may or may not know, I am reticent to sign confidential documents.  Panel, thank you, those were my only questions.

MS. HELT:  Thank you.  Mr. Brett, we will proceed, then.  I think you are the only one who has further questions for panel 2.  If there is anything that you need to ask questions about confidential material, if you could save them to the end then we would go in camera.

But again, and you stated this earlier, you are will do your best to try and ask questions so we don't have to go in camera, but it is up to you if we do.  Thank you.
Questions by Mr. Brett:

MR. BRETT:  Okay.  Good afternoon, panel.  You probably have heard all of the questions I am going to ask you; it is a characteristic of our system here.

I wanted to start with asking you about the transition costs and savings.  I think BOMA 8, I believe 8(b) -- let me just check this.  I'm sorry, it is BOMA 10.  This is the cost side of it, first of all.  I want to ask a little bit about the cost side, and the implementation cost side, and then a little bit about the savings side, which is on the Board Staff 8 and 3.  You were asked a bit about that this morning by Board Staff.

Okay, if we look at the table at page 4 of BOMA 10, we have the breakdown of the implementation capital cost.  What I wanted to ask there is, do you have -- for example, a lot of this -- let's take item 1, CIS consolidation.

What you have done is you have estimated the costs going forward.  I take it -- are these sort of preliminary estimates, or are these estimates that you would describe as pretty hard estimates?

I notice that these are all for the years 1, 2 and 3.  How would you characterize these?

MR. PASTORIC:  Currently we would indicate it as preliminary.

MR. BRETT:  Preliminary?

MR. PASTORIC:  That's correct.

MR. BRETT:  Are you able to provide any further level of detail on -- I don't want to go through each of these separately, necessarily.  But, you know, you have CIS consolidation, ERP, engineering systems, infrastructure consolidation; these are fairly substantial numbers.

Are you able to estimate -- are you able to have -- do you have any further backup that would explain how you arrived at these numbers that you could file?

[Witness panel confers]

The internal reports that you have done or -–

MR. PASTORIC:  We can look to provide more details.  Sorry.

MR. BRETT:  Would you look --


MR. PASTORIC:  We can provide more details on each of these, but again it is very preliminary.

MR. BRETT:  Right.

MR. PASTORIC:  So how granular do you want to go?

MR. BRETT:  Could I have an undertaking on that?

MR. PASTORIC:  Yes.

MS. HELT:  Sure.  That will be undertaking JTC1.18 and that is to provide, or to review to determine if you have additional documentation and, if so, to provide that.

MR. BRETT:  I think what he said actually was that he would provide additional detail.

His caveat was that he is not sure how helpful it would be, but he did say he would provide it, I believe.

MR. PASTORIC:  We can provide a summary on each of the top four projects, if that is appropriate for you.  We will provide a one-pager that lays it out.

MR. BRETT:  Like a one-pager on each one of them?

MR. PASTORIC:  Yes.

MS. HELT:  So then to provide the additional detail with respect to the categories listed in table 3 on page 4 in response to BOMA 10.

MR. CASS:  Maureen, I think the reference was to the top four.  So I think only the bottom one is relatively small.  Is that enough?

MR. PASTORIC:  It is the four IT projects that are essentially the customer service system, the ERP system.  We'll mix up the engineering systems which is GIS and OMS, and the infrastructure consolidation which is email, phones, and website.

Essentially, we would provide a one-pager on each of those giving the preliminary numbers, to give you a better breakdown.

MS. HELT:  That will be then JTC1.18.
UNDERTAKING NO. JTC1.18:  TO PROVIDE THE ADDITIONAL DETAIL WITH RESPECT TO THE CATEGORIES LISTED IN TABLE 3 ON PAGE 4 IN RESPONSE TO BOMA 10.

MR. BRETT:  And then going over to the savings, I think the best place to look at this is the discussion you had this morning, Board Staff 8 and Board Staff 3, if you kind of have your thumb on both of those.

Now, we did discuss this morning the fact that one of these was ten years and one was five years on the operating side.  I am not sure.

If I look at the operating expenditures by function, by year on Board Staff 3, table 1, you have a number of items there that make up the 354.

And then over on Board Staff 8, you have another response which anticipate operating expenditures, operating savings for the first five years.  I think that is how to read this, and then from years six to ten, $42.5 million is forecast.

I mean, I take it that these are preliminary numbers as well?

MR. PASTORIC:  That's correct.

MR. BRETT:  Would you be able to provide a similar one-pager on each of the items in table 1 on Staff 3?  These are the O&M reductions by year.

I don't mean you have to have a separate one-pager for each year, but a separate one-pager for each of the functions, so we have some -- a little more idea of exactly what's involved, how you went about generating these numbers for operating expenditure reductions.

MR. WOLFF:  So just for clarity, in VECC 5(c) we've provided the 354.6 that's broken down into FTE and "other", but only in those two amounts.  But over the ten years.  So --


MR. BRETT:  This is in VECC --


MR. WOLFF:  VECC 5(c).

MR. BRETT:  But it is just the same summary table, is it?

MR. WOLFF:  Well, it provides the operating synergies that tie to the 354.6, but breaks it down into FTE and "other".

MR. BRETT:  What's the first category?

MR. WOLFF:  FTEs and "other".

MR. BRETT:  Yes.  I was actually -- I haven't -- sorry.  This is the VECC table here now on this?

MR. WOLFF:  5(c), correct.

MR. BRETT:  I understand a large part is on human resources here, but they have -- for example, on Table 1 they have 23 million in human resources reduction.  And then I was hoping to get a more detailed breakdown more along the lines of -- what Table 1 does is give you a kind of a functional breakdown of each of the, you know, each of the areas, and human resources was one of them.  These are reductions in operating costs over a period of time.

I had that more in mind, that we would have an explanation of each of those items separately.

MS. SCHACHT:  Maybe I can be helpful in sort of trying to understand the 354.6 million, because -- in terms of the savings, because it really falls into two buckets.  The first bucket is what we're calling payroll savings of --


MR. BRETT:  Sorry, I didn't get that.

MS. SCHACHT:  The two buckets.  So the first bucket is what we're calling payroll savings of 306.9 million.  Those are savings directly related to the FTE reductions.  That's what that 306.9 million represents.

The 47.7 million of the 354.6 are what we're calling non-payroll savings, and those include things like benefits harmonization, IT hardware and software maintenance savings, harmonization of systems.  And those are detailed in other IR responses.  So --


MR. BRETT:  Just if I can -- are you saying that
the -- I am aware of that breakdown of the three -- of the overall total of the two groups, but how does that relate to Table 1, which is -- gives me anticipated reductions in O&M expenditures by function, which is a much more detailed breakdown.  It -- I guess, you know, what you are -- would it be appropriate, for example, to take each number in -- each of the lines in Table 1, centralized and decentralized, and apply a ratio of, you know, essentially six to one and say -- say that six parts of each of those is payroll and one part is non-payroll?

I am trying to get a little more detailed breakdown of the actual -- of what's actually happening, how these -- so I am assuming, for example, if I looked at, say, finance and you were to produce what I am talking about, that you would say as part of that that -- you would say, here's how -- you would explain how you got to the 38 million over ten years.

And I take it that a significant part of that would be -- would be payroll reductions; is that right?  Is that what you're kind of -- where we're going here?

MR. WOLFF:  So perhaps -- there is a schedule that was provided on a confidential basis.  That is Board Staff 7.  And it is redacted.  But it does provide the payroll and non-payroll in the same general categories as what you see in Board Staff 3.

MR. BRETT:  Board Staff 1 -- Table 1 there?

MR. WOLFF:  Yes.

MR. BRETT:  Maybe I should look at that.  And that confidential table is -- is it dealing with the human resources aspect of each of those?  Is that the idea?

MR. WOLFF:  Payroll and non-payroll.  That's the breakdown.

MR. BRETT:  So the non-human resources aspect...

MS. SCHACHT:  So just for clarification, on that table, payroll does mean the human resources aspect of it.  That is the FTE reductions.  And the --


MR. BRETT:  Right.  But you have a human resources reduction there.  I am looking at Table 1.  So if you look at Table 1 on Staff 3 you have a human resources line there, 24 million.

What I am assuming that is, is you're making changes in your human resources.  You will have efficiencies in your human resources function.  You will have less people involved doing that work.

And in order to find out how many less people, I look at the confidential filing, and then the question is, well, what's left?  What is the other part that is non-confidential for each of these items here that total up to 47 million I guess, if you're with me.  And at least I think that is what -- I think that is what I hear you saying.

So the question I would have then is, apart from human resources, what else is in there that could be described in a little more detail?  I mean, I guess there is IT aspects.  Well, I guess there is other things.  There is things other than human resources, right?

MS. SCHACHT:  In Board Staff 3, Table 1, when you look at the HR number, the total would include -- it is -- the majority is payroll savings, which would be head count reductions, but there are some other savings in there like benefits, harmonization, some consulting costs, those kinds of things.

MR. BRETT:  It is those benefits that are -- it is those items that I am interested in.  I would like to see if -- I would like to ask if we can get additional information for each of these items that are non-payroll-related.

I can understand why you would want the payroll-related to be on a confidential basis.  But on the other side of it, can we get something on that, similar to what you are -- I mean, it might not be a page for each of them.  Some of them are rather small.  But some of them are, you know, in total are quite -- $50 million there --


MS. SCHACHT:  I could refer you to BOMA 10, Table 2, which actually has a breakdown of non-payroll.  That's costs, not savings.  That's costs.  Those are not savings.  Sorry, that is costs, not savings.

MR. BRETT:  It's something else; okay.

MR. MACDONALD:  Mr. Brett, maybe I can help --


MR. BRETT:  Yes.

MR. MACDONALD:  -- with your question.  So the total savings -- there is several different tables, but it is 354 million.  And 306 million are -- the vast majority of those are -- or the vast majority of those costs are payroll.

You are just asking for a brief commentary on what makes up the non-payroll costs, what kinds of things are in there.

MR. BRETT:  Yes.

MR. MACDONALD:  So I think we can provide a brief --


MR. BRETT:  [Speaking off-mic]

MR. MACDONALD:  -- a brief -- a few bullets about what is in those non-payroll.  I think that is something we could do.

MR. BRETT:  Is that something you can do?

MS. SCHACHT:  Yes, yes.

MS. HELT:  So Undertaking JTC1.19 will be to provide some of the non-payroll-related costs (sic) associated with the function set out in Table 1, in response to Board Staff 3.
UNDERTAKING NO. JTC1.19:  TO PROVIDE SOME OF THE NON-PAYROLL-RELATED SAVINGS ASSOCIATED WITH THE FUNCTION SET OUT IN TABLE 1, IN RESPONSE TO BOARD STAFF 3.

MR. BRETT:  Yes.


MR. CASS:  Maureen, you said costs.

MS. HELT:  Oh, savings.

MR. BRETT:  Savings, yes, savings.  Sorry.

Just while we're on the issue of -- I don't know whether you can answer this or whether this should be dealt with -- I'm not proposing to go into a confidential thing today, I don't think.

 But you gave me a number.   In this evidence that you filed this morning, TC AMPCO 8, you provided a number of redundant positions, included in the payroll savings.  And of course, I am not going to say what the number is.  But I was curious.

 Redundant position just means -- it means a slot that isn't filled, is that right?

It doesn't refer -- I am just -- I really want to understand redundant position.  It means a job description essentially that won’t be there?

MS. SCHACHT:  So when we talk about --

MR. BRETT:  Let me just add one more little note.

MS. SCHACHT:  Sure.

MR. BRETT:  Whether or not there is a person in there now I guess is what I am getting at.  In other words, could you have a position that is now vacant, that is included in that number you gave me?  Or does that entire number that you filed deal with essentially redundant people that are now in positions that would not be down the road?

MS. SCHACHT:  The number of redundancies or FTE reductions would include positions that are filled and some positions that are currently vacant.

MR. BRETT:  Okay.  And that's a matter of essentially not filling a vacant position then?

MS. SCHACHT:  In some cases, yes.

MR. BRETT:  And roughly, could you tell me what percentage is that, roughly?  I am not looking for a number, but in percentage terms.

[Witness panel confers]

MS. SCHACHT:  If I can refer you to AMPCO 6(b), that has a table of vacancies.

MR. BRETT:  Okay, AMPCO -- what is it?

MS. SCHACHT:  6 b).

MR. BRETT:  Okay.  All right.  I can look that up.  Thank you.

Now, if we go back to the issue of -- I really shouldn't ask this question, but I think as a matter of fairness, I will.  Going back to that issue that we discussed on centralization and non-centralization, if you recall that --

MR. PASTORIC:  Mr. Brett, I believe you are talking about the business plan, page 70 of the operational plan where the words --

MR. BRETT:  Yes, page 70 and 73.  Page 70, yes; do you have any further comment on that?

MR. PASTORIC:  Yes.  Panel 1 was correct.  It is future focus here where we talk about scale and lower costs.  But it also is -- at the time of August 27th, we had looked at both our call centre and our control room, and when we're looking at centralization of those from four to two, there are synergies that will be got.

So it is correct for the present business case that some synergies have been got by centralization, and we're looking at it from a future point of view, that once we analyze each of the functions, we hope to have other savings.

MR. BRETT:  Okay.  So you are saying that you have actually made an analysis and effectively put together -- or drawn some conclusions about those two functions, that when you centralize, they will have savings?

MR. PASTORIC:  In our business case, we do discuss bowing the control room moving from four to two, where the Mississauga control room would be merged with the Hamilton control room.

MR. BRETT:  Right.

MR. PASTORIC:  And the Brampton one will be merged with the one in Vaughan.

MR. BRETT:  Is it the control room that you are speaking about here?  There is not a second one; that’s the control rooms?

MR. PASTORIC:  Control rooms, we'll have two control rooms, one in Hamilton and one in Vaughan.

MR. BRETT:  When would that happen?

MR. PASTORIC:  That could be anywhere between two and three years out, once the GIS and the OMS systems are in place.  So we will see synergies coming out of that.

MR. BRETT:  Okay.  Now I want to move on to -- I want to move on to BOMA 8, and this was the reliability question, I believe.

 Make sure that -- no, it's not 8.  I'm sorry.  Let me just -- there was a question I started to ask the other panel on reliability, and they mentioned that it would be better to ask you.  So let me just find this here.  Hang on.

Okay, it is BOMA 6.  Sorry about that.  If you turn up BOMA 6, I had asked -- well, I asked a number of parts to it.  But what I wanted to focus on was whether or not -- I want to make sure I am correct here.  I am concluding, from the answer to 6, that the applicant is not making any commitment that is, let's say, quantifiable, firm to increase reliability in the system as a result of the merger.

You have given me a number of answers about, you know, answering about your licence and obligations under the licence and the distribution system code and all of that, an all of the RRFE, all of which is there.

 I see all of that, but I just want to make sure I understand.  You are not saying that you are going to increase reliability across the board?  I am talking SAIFI, SAIDI, the relevant traditional reliability statistics, that you are not going to increase those.

MR. PASTORIC:  At this time, we have not set our targets for Mergeco regarding SAIDI and SAIFI.  So at this time, I couldn't indicate if it was increasing or staying the same.

MR. BRETT:  Right.  Okay.  As far as customer service goes, my understanding there is that -- yeah, my understanding there is that -- I'm going to paraphrase a bit here.  I don't have an absolute quote to give you right at the moment, but I am going to try and paraphrase what I’ve read.

I have read -- I am concluding that you are also saying that you will maintain, but not necessarily increase customer service.

What you have committed to is that customer service will not deteriorate, but you are not saying that it will increase -- that it will improve.  You're not guaranteeing that it will improve.

MR. PASTORIC:  That's correct.

MR. BRETT:  Okay.

MR. PASTORIC:  We haven't set our targets in customer service, but we believe, by what actions we're taking with consolidating to two call centres, we will maintain and there will be no adverse effect to customers.

MR. BRETT:  Is there a -- now, you mentioned -- the way -- I think -- and I will paraphrase again.  You mentioned that the way you measure customer service improvement is through customer surveys, which you do on -- I think all the companies do on a fairly regular basis.

And then you talked at some point about a base line survey.  And then you would be doing these comparisons as you go forward.  Is that basically how it works?  I mean, is that how it is measured?

MR. PASTORIC:  Currently we have a number of metrics that the OEB provides dealing with response time.

MR. BRETT:  Right.

MR. PASTORIC:  We meet and exceed those metrics.

Regarding our customer service ones, each of the utilities have gone out to do their individual surveys.

MR. BRETT:  Right.

MR. PASTORIC:  So when you talk about base lines it will be difficult to say we have a base line for Mergeco, because there are four different --


MR. BRETT:  You have four base lines --


MR. PASTORIC:  We have four different base lines at a different time.

MR. BRETT:  Is it -- just from a process point of view, are the individual utilities going to continue to -- or I guess they're now divisions of one utility.

Are the divisions, the zones, whatever we call these guys, are they going to continue to do their own customer surveys?  Or is that...

MR. PASTORIC:  We are committed to the customer, and frankly, I believe the Ontario Energy Board wants us to do surveys moving forward.  So we will do it as Mergeco.

MR. BRETT:  So what I meant -- maybe I misheard.  Will the main company take over that function, or -- I mean, the parent?  Or will -- I guess I am assuming that the individual divisions would continue to do their own customer survey.

MR. PASTORIC:  No.  Mergeco will do one survey for its customers.

MR. BRETT:  Okay.  And this question may have been answered this morning, but if it has -- but I didn't quite hear the response.

Are you able to say whether or not the -- well, let me back up half a step.

I take it the CEO of the new company -- I mean, the top executive has not been chosen yet.  Is that fair?

MS. SCHACHT:  No, that's not correct.  It was recently announced that Brian Benz, who is the current CEO of PowerStream, has been appointed the CEO designate of the new company.

MR. BRETT:  Okay, thank you.  Okay.  I think those are my questions.  Thank you.

MR. PASTORIC:  Thank you.

MS. HELT:  Thank you, Mr. Brett.  I don't believe there are any other questions, so I would like to thank both witness panels for your participation today.
Procedural Matters:


There are a couple of administrative matters I would just like to go over before we close for today.

As you are aware, Procedural Order No. 2 not only established the date for this technical conference, but also set out the dates for the oral hearing.  So just to remind parties that the oral hearing is set to commence on September the 7th at 10:00 a.m.  It will continue on September 9th, 15th, and 16th starting at 9:30 a.m. and if necessary it will continue on the 19th and 20th.  After that, September 26th has been the date set for OEB Staff and intervenor oral submissions, and oral reply submissions will be on September 30th.

Obviously, if things happen with the schedule and the hearing finishes in less than six days and, you know, and parties want to move updates for certain things or otherwise, that is certainly something always we can bring to the attention of the Panel.

So that is the first thing I wanted to remind parties of.  The second question is really for the applicant and Mr. Cass and Mr. Sidlofsky.

There are 19 undertakings that were given.  Do you have any indication of when you think -- like, will it take a week based on -- or ten days...

MR. CASS:  I am told, Maureen, that they can be ready by Tuesday.

MS. HELT:  All right.  Terrific.  So --


MR. CASS:  How is that for positive response?

MS. HELT:  -- I'll note that down.  That's August 30th.  And if you can't make it by Tuesday, just call and...  Okay.  So that's August 30th, August 31st, for the undertaking responses.

Also next week it is likely that we will be contacting parties to try and put together a hearing plan.  That is really for, you know, required times for cross-examination, direct examination.

So either myself or Judith or Dan will be in touch with everybody, and we will put that together accordingly.  If anyone has time constraints, to let us know, that would be most helpful.

And that is all I have.  So --


MR. BRETT:  I have a question.

MS. HELT:  Oh.  Yes, Mr. Brett.

MR. BRETT:  I wondered when you thought the Board might be making its decision on the outstanding confidentiality?

MS. HELT:  Actually, that is a very good question, and I did have that noted down to address.

The Board will attempt to at some point next week provide a decision on the confidential IR responses that were provided at the end of, I think it was July 27th.  There was a letter provided by the applicant setting out five or six interrogatory responses for which confidentiality is sought.

And so the Board will endeavour to get a decision out on that next week so that for the purposes of the hearing we know what we're dealing with.

Okay.  Thank you very much, everyone.
--- Whereupon the conference concluded at 4:18 p.m.
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